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Federal Compliance Filing by Institutions 

Effective September 1, 2016 – August 31, 2018 

This document outlines the information institutions should provide in a separate federal compliance 
section of their Assurance Argument or Comprehensive Quality Review. Institutions should answer the 
questions below and provide supporting documentation where necessary. A list of required and optional 
appendixes is provided at the end of the document. 

The information requested in this document should be uploaded in the Assurance System in a separate 
federal compliance document before the visit unless otherwise noted. The institution should refer to the 
Federal Compliance Overview: Information for Institutions and Peer Reviewers in completing this 
template. This guide identifies applicable HLC policies and provides an explanation of each requirement.  

Note that some federal requirements are related to the Criteria for Accreditation or Assumed Practices. 
This document identifies those related Criteria and Assumed Practices so that the institution may cross-
reference any material it prepares to address them. The document also provides cross-references to the 
Code of Federal Regulations; while these cross-references will provide context for HLC’s requirements, it 
is important that institutions write to HLC’s requirements and not to the federal regulations cited. 

Institution name: Barclay College 

Main contact in the financial aid office: Ryan Haase 

Number of staff members in the financial aid office: 1 full-time; 1 part-time 

Identify when the last U.S. Department of Education training for the staff of the financial aid office 
occurred: outsourced seminar Summer 2016; SIS training Fall 2017. 

Assignment of Credits, Program Length and Tuition 

1. Complete the Worksheet for Institutions on the Assignment of Credit Hours and Clock Hours. Submit 
the worksheet and the attachments listed in it as Appendix A. 

2. What is the length in semester or quarter hours or other applicable units of each of the institution’s 
degree programs? Institutions offering programs at a single degree level may be able to identify a 
specific number of semester or quarter hours to which all their programs conform; institutions with 
programs at different degree levels may need to expand their answer, and if so should include a list 
in Part A, Section 1 of the Worksheet for Institutions on the Assignment of Credit Hours and Clock 
Hours (Appendix A). 
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3. Are there any differences in tuition for specific programs?  

 Yes 

 No 

If so, please identify the programs and explain the rationale for the difference in tuition.  

      

For more information see Federal Requirements 34 CFR §602.16(a)(1)(viii), 34 CFR §602.24(f), 34 CFR 
§600.2, and 34 CFR §668.8(k) and (l). 

Related HLC Requirements: Core Component 3.A and Assumed Practice B.1. 

Institutional Records of Student Complaints 

4. What is the institution’s process for handling student complaints? 

Student Services inestigates each complaint and seeks resulution by discussion or approriate action. The 

action taken is recorded with the outcome in a complaint log housed in the Student Services folder on the 

server. 

5. Provide the institution’s complaint policy and procedure and the web address where the public can 
find this information: 

The complaint policy and process is described in the Student Handbook which is vailable in printed form 

to each student and in electronic form to all who have access to the college network. The web adress is 

www.barclaycollege.edu. It is listed as a link titled, Handbook. .   or attach as Appendix B. 

6. Provide an aggregated report of the number and type of complaints received since the last 
comprehensive evaluation by HLC and explain their resolutions. Attach as Appendix C. 

7. How does the institution integrate what it has learned from the complaint process into improvements 
in services or in teaching and learning?  

Discussions are regularly held in the President's Cabinet and, depending on the situation, in faculty 

meetings. Student Services personell meet often to discuss situations that arise from student life. 

For more information see Federal Requirement 34 CFR §602.16(a)(1)(ix). 

Related HLC Requirements: Core Component 2.A and Assumed Practice A.3, A.4. 

Publication of Transfer Policies  

8. Where are the institution’s transfer policies published?  

Transfer Policies are published in the Student Handbook (page 19), in each of the college catalogs, in the 

Faculty/Staff Handbook (pages 52 and 56) and in the Registrar's Manual (Transfer Section). The policy is 

found in the campus cataolg at page 15, and online at page 14. Each of these catalogs is available at the 

college website at https://www.barclaycollege.edu/pdf/CatalogCampus.pdf.    

Provide copies of the published transfer policies (such as those included in the institution’s catalog, 
on the website or in other appropriate publications) as Appendix D. 

9. How does the institution disclose articulation agreements, at both the institutional level and the 
program level, to current and prospective students? (Ensure that the disclosures clearly identify 
whether the institution 1) accepts credits from the other institution(s) through the articulation 
agreement; 2) sends credits to the other institution(s) through the articulation agreement; 3) both 
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offers and accepts credits with the institution(s) in the articulation agreement; and 4) what specific 
credits articulate through the agreement [e.g., general education only; pre-professional nursing 
courses only; etc.].)  

The articulation agreements in place with other colleges are listed in the appropriate catalogs and there 

are handout materials that are given to prospective students.  The main means to disclose these 

programs is, however, at the college websiste www.barclaycollege.edu. A document "Articulation 

Agreements" is linked in the "About Barclay College" section.   

Provide a list of articulation agreements as Appendix E and the web address where the public can 
access this list. Note that you do not need to provide the full articulation agreements, only the list of 
agreements that you make public.  

10. What is the process implemented by the institution to align the disclosed transfer policies with the 
criteria and procedures used by the institution in making transfer decisions?   

The Registrar is the one charged with assuring the transfer policies are kept.  The VP for Academics and 

the student academic advisors are also called upon to check that the policy is followed.  

The Registrar evaluates the incoming student transcripts and transfers credits according to the policy.  If 

there are cases outside of the policy (accreditation for the college, level of a class, etc.) the Registrar 

confers with the VP for Academics. 

Any time the transfers might exceed the 40% allowed for a core component of a major or more than 70% 

of the whole he must take the decision to do so to the faculty.  

Provide evidence (e.g., charts, data, etc.) that institutional decisions regarding transfer of academic 
credit align with the policy:  

See Appendix F or attach as Appendix F. 

For more information see Federal Requirement 34 CFR §668.43(a)(11). 

Related HLC Requirements: Core Component 2.A and Assumed Practice A.5.D. 

Practices for Verification of Student Identity 

11. Does the institution have students enrolled in distance or correspondence courses, as defined in 
federal definitions?  

 Yes 

 No 

12. How does the institution verify the identity of students enrolled in these courses?  

Because the Spiritual Formation program uses an electronic conferencing system as well as the face-to-

face sessions student verification is confirmed in person. 

For the Online program, both undergraduate and graduate, student verification is handled by providing 

unique logins and passwords for each user, promoting Academic Honesty in the orientation, requiring 

that an Academic Honesty Verification be signed after each class, and by requiring logins for quizzes.  

Students in the application process are required to provide references from people who know them.  

These references are checked. 

13. Are there any additional costs (e.g., fees associated with test proctoring) charged directly to the 
student because of this method?  

 Yes 

 No 
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14. What are these additional costs?  

NA 

15. How are the additional costs disclosed to students prior to enrollment in a distance or 
correspondence course?  

NA 

Provide copies of the disclosures and the web address where the public can access such information 
as Appendix G. 

16. How does the method of verification make reasonable efforts to protect student privacy?  

No personal information is displayed for others than those who need to know. 

For more information see Federal Requirement 34 CFR §602.17(g).  

Related HLC Requirement: Core Component 2.A. 

Title IV Program Responsibilities 

This requirement has several components the institution must address. The institution staff compiling this 
information should work with the financial aid office and the chief financial officer or comptroller. For more 
information see Federal Requirement 34 CFR §602.16(a)(1)(x). 
 
17. General Program Responsibilities 

 
a. What is the current status of the institution’s Title IV program (e.g., recertified on date x, 

provisionally certified on date x, etc.)? 

 Recertified June 2015. 

b. When was the institution’s most recent Title IV program review?  

The audit proces for the college reviews the financial aid program ech year.  The last college audit 

was August 2017 

c. Has the institution been audited or inspected by the Office of the Inspector General of the U.S. 
Department of Education since the last comprehensive evaluation by HLC?  

 Yes 

 No 

d. Attach the most recent Title IV program review, or other inspection or audit reports since the last 
comprehensive evaluation by HLC, as Appendix H. 

e. List any limitation, suspension or termination actions imposed on the institution by the U.S. 
Department of Education (hereafter referred to as “the Department”) since the last 
comprehensive evaluation by HLC and the reason for such actions.  

NA 

f. List any fines, letters of credit or heightened monitoring imposed on the institution by the 
Department since the last comprehensive evaluation by HLC and the reason for such actions.  

NA 

g. What response and corrective actions has the institution taken in regard to these Department 
actions?  



Audience: Institutions  Process: Federal Compliance Filing 
Form  Contact: 800-621-7440 
Published: March 2016 © Higher Learning Commission  Page 5 

NA 

h. What are the consequences of these challenges for the institution’s short- and long-term financial 
health?  

NA 

i. What are the findings from the OMB Circular A-133 portion of the institution’s three most recent 
audited financial statements, which identifies material weaknesses in the processing of financial 
aid?  
All of the last three audits found tha the financial aid office complied with the requirements.  No 

adverse or negative findings were reported. 
 

j. In which of the following Title IV federal financial aid programs does the institution participate? 
Select all that apply: 
 

 Pell Grant 
 Federal Family Education Loan 
 Federal Direct Stafford Loan 
 Direct PLUS Loan 
 Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant 
 Federal Work Study 
 Perkins Loans 
 Academic Competitiveness Grant 

 
Provide all correspondence with the Department and other documents that explain the above responses 
as Appendix I. 

 
For more information see Federal Requirement 34 CFR §668.16. 

 
18. Financial Responsibility Requirements  

 
a. What were the outcomes of the three most recent Department reviews of the institution’s 

composite ratios and financial audits?  
Each of the audits for the past three years have given unqualified conformation of compliance. 
 

b. Have there been any fines, penalties, letters of credit or other requirements imposed by the 
Department as a result of these reviews? 
No fines. 

 
 Note: HLC also annually analyzes each institution’s financial ratios to determine whether there 

might be financial concerns. The peer review team checks with the institution and the HLC staff to 
determine whether HLC or the Department has previously raised concerns about the institution’s 
finances based on these ratios.  

 
c. What actions has the institution taken or does it plan to take in response to any concerns raised 

by HLC or the Department? (Related HLC Requirements: Core Components 5.A, 2.B; Assumed 
Practice D.1.) 
NA 
 
Provide all correspondence with the Department and other documents that explain the above 
actions as Appendix J. 
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For more information see Federal Requirements 34 CFR 668.15, 34 CFR 668.23, 34 CFR 668.171, 34 
CFR 668.173, and 34 CFR 668.174. 
 
Related HLC Requirements: Criterion 5, Core Components A (resources) and B (administrative 
capacity). 
 
19. Default Rates. The institution should take steps to avoid excessive loan default rates. 

Institutions and teams should use the three-year default rate to complete this section. 

a. What are the student loan default rates as provided by the Department for the three years leading 
up to the visit? (Institutions with evaluations after September must include the most recent cohort 
default rate in the Federal Compliance Filing or ensure that the most recent rate is provided to the 
team on-site if the rate was not available when the Federal Compliance Filing was submitted.) 

Year 1: 12:1  

Year 2: 6:8  

Year 3: 6:8  

b. If the institution’s default rates are higher than those of its peer institutions, if the institution’s rates 
are rising, or if the rates have exceeded Departmental thresholds or triggered a Department 
review, what actions has the institution taken in response?  

Default Rate Response Steps taken 

1. Dissemination of information to students of the importance of not going into default on their loans. 

a. meeting with all graduating seniors about the negative impact going into default would be.   

2. Sent out a letter  about a year from graduation to remind them  the damage it will cause them and 

Barclay College, if they go into default. Letter sent each year. 

3. Letter to each name we receive that are in default, to remind them the importance of making their 

monthly payments. Included a flyer from NSLP about default.  

Provide any correspondence with the Department related to default rates and any default rate 
management plan required by the Department as Appendix K. 

 

c. Does the institution participate in private loan programs or any loan services that it provides to 
students directly or that a related corporation provides to its students?  

 Yes 

 No 

If yes, provide a list of companies that provide loan services to the institution’s students and 
explain the relationship of these companies to the institution. 
Loan companies that Barclay works with are Sallie Mae and Wells Fargo. Barclay goes through Great 

Lakes to certify the alternative loans.   
 
Provide samples of the loan agreements and disclosure information as Appendix L. 
 

For more information see Federal Requirements 34 CFR §668.201, §668.204, and §668.217.  
 
Related HLC Requirements: HLC Criterion 2, Core Component A (integrity); Criterion 5, Core 
Components A (resources) and B (administrative capacity); Assumed Practices D.1–5. 
 
20. Campus Crime Information, Athletic Participation and Financial Aid, and Related Disclosures. Title IV 

responsibilities include the legal obligation to disclose information to students and to the public about 
campus crime, athletic participation and financial aid.  
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a. What administrator or office on campus is responsible for ensuring that these disclosures are 

regularly compiled and published and that the data are accurate? 
Student Services and the VP for Student Services 
 

b. Has the institution been the subject of any federal investigation related to any of the required 
disclosures listed in question 20?  

 Yes 

 No 

c. Does the institution have any findings from the Department regarding these disclosures?  
 Yes 

 No 

Explain any findings related to any of the required disclosures listed in question 20 and corrective 
action plans the institution may have put together to remedy the findings.  
NA 
 

d. Provide copies of the information disclosed to students and provide the web address where this 
information is made available to the public as Appendix M. 
 

For more information see Federal Requirements 34 CFR §668.40, 668.41, 668.42, 668.43, 668.44, 
668.46, and 668.49. 

 
21. Student Right to Know/Equity in Athletics. Title IV responsibilities require that institutions provide to 

students and the public graduation/completion rates for the student body by gender, ethnicity, receipt 
of Pell grants and other data as well as information about the process for withdrawing as a student, 
cost of attendance, policies on refund and return of Title IV financial aid, current academic programs 
and faculty, names of applicable accrediting agencies, description of facilities for disabled students, 
and the institution’s policy on enrollment in study abroad. In addition, certain institutions need to 
disclose their transfer-out rate. Also, institutions with athletic programs are required to disclose 
athletic participation rates and financial support data. 

 
a. What administrator or office on campus is responsible for ensuring that these disclosures are 

regularly compiled and published and that the data are accurate? 
Institutional Reporting (formerly was part of the Registrar's Office) assures the percentages and 

reportable data are current.  The Associate VP for Campus Academics assures that the data in the 

campus catologs is current with information concerning withdrawals and enrollment. The Director of 

Online Services does the same for the online catalog.  The VP for Student Services also publishes the 

data needed by students in the Student Handbook. 
 

b. Has the institution been the subject of any federal investigation related to any of the required 
disclosures listed in question 21? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
c. Does the institution have any findings from the Department regarding these disclosures?  

 Yes 

 No 
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d. Explain any findings related to any of the required disclosures listed in question 21 and corrective 
action plans the institution may have put together to remedy the findings.  
NA 
 

e. Attach copies of the information disclosed to students and provide the web address where this 
information is made available to the public as Appendix N. 
 

For more information see Federal Requirements 34 CFR §668.41, 668.45, 668.48, and 668.8. 

Related HLC Requirement: Assumed Practice A.6. 

 
22. Satisfactory Academic Progress and Attendance Policies. The institution is required to have a 

Satisfactory Academic Progress policy and an attendance policy as part of the Title IV program.  
 

a. Are these policies readily available to students?  
 Yes 

 No 

 
b. Do they satisfy state or federal requirements?  

 Yes 

 No 

 
c. Does the institution have any findings from the Department regarding these disclosures?  

 Yes 

 No 

Explain any findings related to any of the required disclosures listed in question 22 and corrective 
actions that may have been required by the Department related to these findings.  
NA 
 

d. Attach copies of the information disclosed to students and provide the web address where this 
information is made available to the public as Appendix O. 
 

e. Are the policies being appropriately applied by the institution in individual student situations?  
 

Note: HLC does not necessarily require that the institution take attendance unless required to do 
so by state or federal regulations but does anticipate that institutional attendance policies provide 
information to students about attendance at the institution. 
 

 Yes 

 No 

For more information see Federal Requirement 34 CFR §668.34. 
 
Related HLC Requirements: Criterion 3, Core Component A; Assumed Practice A.5. 
 
23. Contractual Relationships. List any contracts related to academic programs with third-party entities 

not accredited by a federally recognized accrediting agency. Attach as Appendix P. Include the 
name of the provider, the name of the relevant academic program, what the provider does, the dates 
when the relationship starts and ends, and the date it was approved by HLC if required. 
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 (The institution should have previously disclosed to HLC all existing contracts and received approval 
for those contracts as required by HLC policy. Institutions can see the list of HLC-approved 
contractual arrangements on its Institutional Status and Requirements (ISR) Report. HLC’s 
substantive change policy requires that the institution notify HLC of any new contracts for up to 
25 percent of an academic program, that the institution obtain prior HLC approval before initiating any 
contract for 25 to 50 percent of a program, and that HLC approve contracts for more than 50 percent 
of a program only in exceptional circumstances under strict scrutiny.)  
 

For more information see Federal Requirements 34 CFR §668.5 and 602.22(a)(2)(vii). 
 
Related HLC Requirements: Assumed Practices A.10–11. 
 
24. Consortial Relationships. List any consortial relationships with other entities accredited by a federally 

recognized accrediting agency. Attach as Appendix Q. Include the name of the provider, the name 
of the relevant academic program, what the provider does, the dates when the relationship starts and 
ends, and the date it was approved by HLC if required. 

 
 (The institution should have previously disclosed to HLC all existing consortiums and received 

approval for those consortial arrangements as required by HLC policy. Institutions can see the list of 
HLC-approved consortial arrangements on its Institutional Status and Requirements (ISR) Report. 
HLC’s substantive change policy requires that the institution notify HLC of any new consortiums for 
up to 25 percent of an academic program, that the institution obtain prior HLC approval before 
initiating any consortiums for 25 to 50 percent of a program, and that HLC approve consortiums for 
more than 50 percent of a program only in exceptional circumstances under strict scrutiny.)  

 
For more information see Federal Requirement 34 CFR §668.5. 

 
Related HLC Requirements: Assumed Practices A.10–11. 

Required Information for Students and the Public 

25. Provide course catalogs and student handbooks. Attach as Appendix R. 

26. Which sections of the institution’s website include required disclosure information? Provide the 
webpage name and link for each.  

 https://www.barclaycollege.edu/about/ 

      
27. What policies and processes does the institution have in place to ensure required information for 

current and prospective students about institutional programs, fees, policies and related required 
information is accurate, timely and appropriate? Attach copies of these policies and procedures as 
Appendix S. 
 

For more information see Federal Requirement 34 CFR §602.16(a)(1)(vii). 
 

Related HLC Requirements: Core Component 2.A, 2.B; Assumed Practice A.5. 

Advertising and Recruitment Materials and Other Public Information 

28. Do the institution’s advertisements and recruiting materials provide accurate, timely and appropriately 
detailed information to current and prospective students, and is information about the institution’s 
accreditation status with HLC and other accrediting agencies clear and accurate? If the institution has 
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been placed on a sanction or its programmatic accreditation has been withdrawn, do the disclosures 
accurately explain this information?   

 Yes 

 No 

 Provide copies of these advertising and recruiting materials as Appendix T.  

29. Which sections of the institution’s website include advertising and recruiting information? Provide the 
webpage name and link for each.  

https://www.barclaycollege.edu/undergraduate/campus/ 

https://www.barclaycollege.edu/undergraduate/online/ 

https://www.barclaycollege.edu/about/ 

https://www.barclaycollege.edu/graduate/ 

30. What policies and processes does the institution have in place to ensure advertising and recruiting 
information to current and prospective students about its programs, locations and policies is 
accurate, timely and appropriate? Provide copies of these policies and procedures as Appendix U. 

31. What webpage displays the Mark of Affiliation on the institution’s website? Provide a link.  

https://www.barclaycollege.edu/about/accreditation/ 

 

For more information see Federal Requirements 34 CFR §602.16(a)(1)(vii) and 602.23(d). 
 

Related HLC Requirements: Core Component 2.B; Assumed Practices A.5, A.7. 

Review of Student Outcome Data 

Institutions in their program review and institutional improvement processes are required to consider 
student outcome or performance data on the full range of their offerings where such data are available. 
Data can be at the institutional or the program level. Student achievement data typically include retention 
rates, graduation rates, licensure exam pass rates, employment rates, acceptance to further study or 
other similar information. 

 
32. How does the institution gather or receive information about student outcomes from academic 

programs across the institution?  

This information is gatherd by the Office for Institutional Reporting and published in a semester report 

that primarlily goes to officers of the college and to members of the board.  Some of the data from the 

report is posted to the website. https://www.barclaycollege.edu/about/ 

The college assessment plan calls for much outcome data.  This data is collected by the departments and 

handed oveer to the Assessment Office. 

33. List the types of student outcome data available to the institution:   

See Appendix V or attach as Appendix V. 

34. Explain how information about student outcomes informs planning, academic program review, 
assessment of student learning, consideration of institutional effectiveness, and other topics.  

Data from the assessmeent process is regularly addressed in faculty meetings and has an impact on the 

workof the CAP (Committee for Assessment and Planning). Divisional objectives and course objectives 
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have been modified.  New processes have been put into effect. Budget considerations for personnell and 

material have been made based on the assesent outcomes.   

35. The federal government is increasingly concerned that institutions and accreditors are taking into 
account federal metrics in the review of student outcome data. These metrics are best found in the 
College Scorecard.  

Explain how information from the Scorecard is incorporated in the institution’s review of its student 
outcome data.  Please note the loan repayment rate identified on the Scorecard and explain how the 
institution uses this metric in its review of its own data. 

The scorecard shows graduation and retention rates.  These figures are reported each semester to the 

college by Institutional Reporting.  The scorecard also shows average SAT and ACT Exam scores which 

are also reported on the various surveys that the college must complete each year. Keeping the annual 

cost as low as possible is a major concern in planning.  Another major concern is increasing the 

graduation and retention rates.  These flucuate each year.  For example the retention rate for Fall 2017 is 

much higher than that which is on the scorecard at the moment. The Loan Re-payment Rate is above 

averge and because the college wishes to keep it so attention has been given to informing students about 

the necessity and importance of repayment. 

 

For more information see Federal Requirement 34 CFR 602.16(a)(1)(i). 
 
Related HLC Requirements: Core Components 4.A–C; Assumed Practice C.6, C.7. 

Publication of Student Outcome Data 

Student outcome data should be made available to the public through the institution’s website—for 
instance, linked to from the institution’s home page, included within the top three levels of the website or 
easily found through a search of related terms on the website—and should be clearly labeled as such. 
Any technical terms in the data should be defined, and any necessary information on the method used to 
compile the data should be included.  Data may be provided at the institutional or department level or 
both, but the institution must disclose student outcome data that address the broad variety of its 
programs.  

36. Are student outcome data published on the institution’s website following the specifications above?  

 Yes 

 No 

37. How does the institution ensure that the publication of these data accurately reflects the range of 
programs at the institution?   

The data which is published by  the college comes generally from the one charged with Institutional 

Reporting who draws data from the Student Information System. He draws data from thecollege as a 

whole and assures that the revelant data reflects the entire college program. The recipients of the reports 

(President's Cabinet, faculty, Board of Trustees)may ask of areas not covered.  This would be one way of 

ensuring coverage of the total college.  

38. Provide a link to the webpage(s) that contains the student outcome data.  

 https://www.barclaycollege.edu/about/  

Related HLC Requirement: Assumed Practice A.6. 
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Standing With State and Other Accrediting Agencies 

39. List any relationships the institution has with a specialized, professional or institutional accreditor or 
with any governing or coordinating bodies in states in which the institution has a presence. Note 
whether the institution or any of its programs is on a sanction, is provisionally approved or has lost 
status with any state agency or accrediting body.  

 Barclay College is accredited by and in good standing with the Association for Biblical Higher Education 

(ABHE)        

 Provide the most recent comprehensive evaluation report and action letter from each institutional or 
specialized accrediting agency as well as any interim monitoring prepared for that agency. Attach as 
Appendix W. 

40. Explain how the institution makes its standing with state agencies and accrediting bodies available to 
students. Provide samples of those disclosures as Appendix X and indicate the web address where 
students and the public can find these disclosures. 

 
https://www.barclaycollege.edu/about/accreditation/ 

 
For more information see Federal Requirements 34 CFR §602.28, 34 CFR 668.41, and 668.43. 
 
Related HLC Requirements: Core Component 2.B; Assumed Practices A.7, C.4. 

Public Notification of Opportunity to Comment 

Local newspapers, institutional websites and alumni magazines are appropriate choices of media in 
which to solicit public comments. Notices of the opportunity to comment should reach all constituencies 
but should not unduly burden the institution. Notices of the visit should be published following the format 
prescribed in the Procedure on Third-Party Comments. 

Notices should include:  

• The purpose and dates of the visit. 

• The institution’s accreditation status with HLC. 

• An invitation to send written, signed comments directly to HLC. 

• Contact information for HLC.  

Notices should specify that comments must be sent to HLC no later than four weeks before the start of 
the visit.  

In cases where comments are of a sensitive nature, HLC ensures that the commenter is aware that 
comments are typically forwarded to the institution and the evaluation team with identifying information 
intact. In some cases, HLC may redact the identifying information of the commenter or summarize the 
comment.  

 
41. Submit a list of constituencies that have received the notice of opportunity to comment. (These 

groups may include students, parents, alumni, taxpayers, donors, community groups and local 
businesses.)  

Alumni, friends of the college, the general public, ans students. Anyone having access to the college 

webpage, the college publication, The Progress, and local newespapers have received notice of the call to 

comment. 

42. What media did the institution use to solicit comments?  
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webpage, college publications, and local newspapers (Kiowa County Signal and the Pratt Tribune). 

43. Copies of the institution’s notices must be sent in PDF format to HLC 
(legalaffairs@hlcommission.org) at least one month before the comprehensive evaluation visit. The 
comments and notices are compiled by HLC staff members and sent to the evaluation team and the 
institution three weeks prior to the visit. As third-party comments are an important part of the 
comprehensive evaluation, HLC also reviews and forwards comments received after the deadline 
lapses and even during the visit. Attach a copy of the notices as Appendix Y. 

Competency-Based Programs Including Direct Assessment Programs / Faculty-Student 
Engagement 

44. Does the institution offer any direct assessment programs, as defined in 34 CFR §668.10?   
 Yes 

 No 

Note: HLC policy and federal regulations require that direct assessment programs be reviewed 
and approved by the accrediting agency before they are initiated.  Contact your HLC liaison if the 
institution offers direct assessment programs that have not been approved by HLC.   

 
45. Does the institution offer any competency-based programs? 

 Yes 

 No 

Note: The definition of competency-based and direct assessment programs (as taken from 
34 CFR §668.10) can be found on the substantive change application for new competency-based 
or direct assessment programs. 

 
46. Provide a list of direct assessment or competency-based programs offered by the institution. 

NA 
 
47. How does the institution ensure that faculty in these programs regularly engage with students?  

Please respond to the following questions: 
 

a. Do the faculty members initiate communication on some regular basis with the students in the 
course(s)? If yes, provide examples of how and when this occurs in each program.  

NA 

b. Do the students have a responsibility to initiate communication with the faculty members on some 
regular basis that is at least equivalent to contact in a traditional classroom? If yes, provide 
examples of how and when this occurs.  

NA 

c. Describe the manner in which faculty respond to questions from students about the academic 
content of the program. Describe the interaction between faculty and students about 
demonstrating competencies in the program material.  

NA 
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d. Demonstrate that in the tasks mastered to assure competency, faculty and students interact 
about critical thinking, analytical skills, written and oral communication abilities, etc., in the context 
of the course(s) in question with appropriate guidance by faculty.  

NA 

e. Demonstrate that in the tasks mastered to assure competency, faculty and students interact 
about core ideas, important theories, current knowledge, etc., in the context of the course(s) in 
question with appropriate guidance by faculty.  

NA 

List of Appendixes 

Please read each section of this document carefully for instructions on the information and material to be 
included in these appendixes. Appendixes displayed in italics are optional; the institution may provide the 
required information either by entering it into this form or by attaching it as an appendix. 
 
Assignment of Credits, Program Length and Tuition 

Appendix A .......... Worksheet for Institutions on the Assignment of Credit Hours and Clock Hours 
 
Institutional Records of Student Complaints 

Appendix B .......... Institutional complaint policy and procedure, and web address 
Appendix C ......... Complaints received since last comprehensive evaluation and their resolutions 

 
Publication of Transfer Policies 

Appendix D ......... Published transfer policies 
Appendix E .......... List of articulation agreements, and web address 
Appendix F .......... Evidence that decisions regarding transfer align with disclosed policy 

 
Practices for Verification of Student Identity 

Appendix G ......... Disclosures of additional costs related to verification, and web address 
 
Title IV Program Responsibilities 

Appendix H ......... Most recent program review or other inspection or audit reports since last 
comprehensive evaluation 

Appendix I ........... Correspondence with the Department and other documents explaining the 
institution’s general program responsibilities 

Appendix J .......... Correspondence with the Department and other documents explaining the 
institution’s actions in response to concerns regarding its financial responsibility 
requirements 

Appendix K .......... Correspondence with the Department related to default rates and any required 
default rate management plan  

Appendix L .......... Samples of loan agreements and disclosure information 
Appendix M ......... Disclosures to students about campus crime information, athletic participation and 

financial aid, and web address 
Appendix N ......... Disclosures to students required by student right to know/equity in athletics 

responsibilities, and web address 
Appendix O ......... Disclosures to students about satisfactory academic progress and attendance 

policies, and web address 
Appendix P .......... List of contractual relationships 
Appendix Q ......... List of consortial relationships 
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Required Information for Students and the Public 
Appendix R ......... Course catalogs and student handbooks 
Appendix S .......... Policies and procedures to ensure required information is accurate, timely and 

appropriate 
 

Advertising and Recruitment Materials and Other Public Information 
Appendix T .......... Advertising and recruiting materials 
Appendix U ......... Policies and procedures to ensure advertising and recruiting information is 

accurate, timely and appropriate 
 

 
Review of Student Outcome Data 

Appendix V .......... Types of student outcome data available to the institution 
 

Standing With State and Other Accrediting Agencies 
Appendix W ......... Comprehensive evaluation reports and action letters from and interim monitoring 

prepared for institutional and specialized accrediting agencies 
Appendix X .......... Sample disclosures of institution’s standing with state agencies and accrediting 

bodies, and web address 
 
Public Notification of Opportunity to Comment 

Appendix Y .......... Notices of opportunity to comment 
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Appendix A: Worksheet for Institutions  
on the Assignment of Credit Hours and Clock Hours 

Instructions 

This worksheet should be completed by the person(s) at the institution who knows the most about the 
institution’s calendar and credit hour assignments; at many institutions the registrar may be the 
appropriate person to complete this worksheet. The person(s) completing the worksheet should work 
closely with the institution’s financial aid officer to ensure consistency between what is reported to HLC 
on this form and what is reported to the U.S. Department of Education (hereafter referred to as “the 
Department”). 

Purpose of this form. This form provides the peer review team with a single source of information about 
the institution’s calendar, credit hour policies and total credit hour generation related to the courses for 
which it provides instruction, and an overview of the institution’s pattern of distribution of credit hour 
assignments. It is not an inventory of every course the institution offers. The institution should: 

• Report on academic terms and credit for courses that support the institution’s certificate and degree 
programs. 

• When appropriate, include in the form brief explanations of the allocation of credit hours. 

• Estimate or round off where appropriate. 

• Not include prior learning, transfer, etc., wherein the institution awards credit but does not provide 
instruction associated with that credit.  

 

Part A. Assignment of Credits and Program Length. All institutions must complete Part A. Institutions 
that use multiple calendars may need to complete more than one area of Section 1. 

Part A includes: 
 Section 1. Institutional Calendar, Term Length and Type of Credit 

Section 2. Format of Courses and Number of Credits Awarded 
Section 3. Policy on Credit Hours 
Section 4. Total Credit Hour Generation 
Section 5. Clock Hours 
   Clock Hour Worksheet. Institutions should complete this worksheet only if they offer clock hour  
   courses/programs or are required by the Department to report certain courses/programs to the  
   Department in clock hours for Title IV purposes. 

 

Part B. Supplemental Materials  
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Part A: Assignment of Credits and Program Length 

Section 1: Institutional Calendar, Term Length and Type of Credit 

Institutions using multiple calendars across the institution may need to complete more than one 
area of the chart below. For more information about the terminology and calendaring units referenced 
in this form, see the 2011–2012 “Federal Student Aid Handbook,” Volume 3, Chapter 1, “Academic 
Calendar, Payment Periods and Disbursements.” Definitions in this section are taken from that 
handbook. 

Institution name: Barclay College 

 

Calendar Term 
Column 1 

Term Length: 
Number of Weeks 

Column 2 
Number of Starts 

Semester / 
Trimester Calendar 

Standard Format: 
14 to 17 week term 

17 

18 

24 

1 (campus) 

3 (online MA) 

4 (online 

Compressed Formats: 
4, 8 or other week terms 
within the semester calendar1 

            

Summer Term             

Quarter Calendar  Standard Format: 
10 to 12 week term 

            

Compressed Formats: 
2, 5 or other week terms 
within the quarter calendar1 

            

Summer Term             
1If an institution offers a summer term that is different in length than the typical fall semester, it should report 
summer term information in this section. 

Non-standard Terms (terms that are not semesters, trimesters or quarters. A non-standard term may 
have the following characteristics: courses do not begin and end within a set period of time; courses 
overlap terms, including self-paced and independent study courses or sequential courses that do not 
begin and end within a term; terms may be of equal or unequal length.) 
 

Calendar Term 
Column 1 

Term Length: 
Number of Weeks 

Column 2 
Number of 

Starts 

Column 3 
Type of Credit 

Non-standard 
Term Calendar 

Term One NA             

Term Two NA             

Term Three NA             
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Summer Term NA             

Degree Programs (Optional) 

What is the length in semester or quarter hours or other applicable units of each of the institution’s 
degree programs? Institutions with programs at different degree levels may include a list here if an 
expanded answer is required (see question 2 in the Federal Compliance Filing by Institutions.) 

128 semester hours  (campus and online 

36 semester hours MA 

 
 

Section 2. Format of Courses and Number of Credits Awarded 

Guide to Completing This Section 

Purpose 

In this section, the institution provides an overview of the pattern of instructional hours required for the 
credit hours it awards. The sample form provides a suggested approach for conveying that information to 
the peer review team. The institution may make modifications to the chart’s format or add brief notes as 
appropriate to explain credit hour awards, particularly in non-standard or compressed-format classes. 

If the institution offers multiple types of terms, such as a compressed-format term and a regular semester 
term, it should complete a separate form for each type of term identified in Section 1. Separate 
forms will help the peer review team understand how instructional time is related to credit hour awards in 
each term. The information in this section need not be extensive as long as it explains how credit hours 
are awarded across various formats at the institution. 

This section should not be used to demonstrate that the institution assigns credit hours appropriately in 
regard to non-contact-hour requirements such as out-of-class group meetings or homework 
assignments. That issue may be addressed in the institution’s credit hour policy, and may be evaluated 
by the peer review team in the sample of institutional programs it examines during the visit. 

Period Reported 

An institution may use any recent term that appropriately depicts its credit hour allocations as the basis 
for completing the Form for Reporting an Overview of Credit Hour Allocations and Instructional Time for 
Courses below. 

Key to Rows 

• Number of Courses—Count each course offered by the institution in the row corresponding to the 
number of credits awarded and the column or columns representing the format of delivery through 
which the course or a section of the course is offered. Do not count sections of the same course if the 
sections are offered in the same delivery format. 
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• Number of Meetings—Enter the total number of class meetings (or equivalent) provided in each 
course with each credit award during the term reported; if the number of class meetings varies, enter 
a range. For distance, correspondence or other formats, report on instructional time. Do not include 
study or other time during which students work independently or with other students even though 
such time may be provided to replace time with a faculty member. Instructional time need not be 
limited to time spent with all students in the class in a single format. 

• Include labs or discussions in the number of meetings if they are a required element of the course, if 
they do not have a separate course number or credit hour allocation, and if the presence of a lab or 
discussion is considered significant when the institution assigns credit hours to the course. If a lab or 
discussion does not meet these considerations, it need not be reflected in this chart. 

• Meeting Length—Enter the range (shortest to longest) of meeting times in each category. (Note: One 
hour may be 50 minutes of actual instructional time.) 

Key to Columns 

• FTF (face-to-face): Courses in which instructors interact with students in the same physical space 
for approximately 75 percent or more of the instructional time. 

• Mixed FTF: Courses in which instructors interact with students in the same physical space for less 
than 75 percent of the instructional time, with the remainder of the instructional time provided through 
distance or correspondence education. 

Note: The above explanations arise from HLC’s distance education protocol. Institutions may use other 
thresholds for FTF and Mixed FTF provided that they define them clearly and include the definition on 
this worksheet. 

• Distance: Courses in which instructors interact with students through one or more forms of distance 
delivery. 

• Correspondence: Courses in which instructors interact with students through mail or electronic 
interface, typically according to a self-paced schedule.  

 Federal Definitions of Distance/Correspondence Education: 

 Distance education/course means education that uses one or more of the {following} technologies 
(i) to deliver instruction to students who are separated from the instructor: and (ii) to support 
regular and substantive interaction between the students and the instructor, synchronously or 
asynchronously. The technologies used may include: (i) the internet; (ii) one way and two way 
transmissions through open broadcast, closed circuit, cable, microwave, broadband lines, fiber 
optics, satellite, or wireless communications devices; (iii) audioconferencing; or (iv) 
videocassettes, DVDs, and CD-Roms, if the videocassettes, DVDs or CD-Roms are used in 
conjunction with any of the technologies listed in clauses (i) through (iii). 

 Correspondence education/course means: (1) Education provided through one or more courses 
by an institution under which the institution provides instructional materials, by mail or electronic 
transmission, including examinations on the materials, to students who are separated from the 
instructor. (2) Interaction between the instructor and the student is not regular and substantive, 
and is primarily initiated by the student. (3) Correspondence courses are typically self-paced. (4) 
Correspondence education is not distance education. 
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• Independent/Directed Study: Courses in which instructors interact with students through a flexible 
format. 

• Weekend College: Some institutions may have an evening or weekend college that, while on the 
same calendar, may structure its courses and credit assignments differently than the same courses 
offered during the regular day. If courses are offered in the evening or on the weekend as another 
scheduling option for students, but the courses provide similar class meetings or instructional time as 
those courses offered by the institution during the regular day, the institution need not report evening 
or weekend courses in this category. 

• Internships or Practica: Some institutions may provide internship or practica experiences for which 
credits are awarded. Institutions that have professional schools in medicine, law, nursing, physical 
therapy, etc., which often require internships or practica with high credit allocations, should provide 
brief summative information about the internships but need not include them in the report form. 

Examples 

• If the institution offers Calculus 210, a three credit-hour course, in FTF and distance formats as well 
as through the Weekend College, the course should be reported in the row for 3 credits and once in 
each column corresponding to each course format offered. 

• If the institution offers that course in a full 14–17-week standard format as well as in a compressed 
format, the course should be reported on one form for the standard format and on a separate form for 
the compressed format. 

• If in the FTF format instructors meet with students two times per week for 1.5 hours per meeting for 
the 14 weeks of the term, the number of meetings should be reported as 28 meetings, and the length 
of each meeting as 1.5 hours. 

NEW: Direct Assessment or Competency-Based Credit Hour Equivalencies 

Complete the questions following the chart with regard to direct assessment or competency-based 
programs. 
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Form for Reporting an Overview of Credit Hour Allocations  
and Instructional Time for Courses 

Using the above instructions and the following sample as a guide, create a form that provides an 
overview of the pattern of instructional hours required for the credit hours the institution awards. 
Complete a separate form for each term length specified in Section 1, Columns 1 and 2, above. Attach 
the form(s) as Supplement A1. 
 
Note: Institutions offering courses with six or more credits awarded should include those courses in 
this form. Identify the number of credits awarded in the first column. In addition, identify the course(s) and 
explain the reasoning behind the credit allocated to those courses in a narrative attached to the form. 
 
SAMPLE—NOT FOR COMPLETION 
 
Term and Length (e.g., Spring 2011, 16 weeks OR Spring 2011, 5 weeks):  

 

 
Number of 
Credits 
Awarded 

Instructional 
Time 

Course Formats 

FTF 
 

Mixed 
FTF 

 

Distance 
 

Corresp. 
 

Independent
/ Directed 

Study 
 

Weeken
d 

College 

Internship 
or 

Practica 
 

1 Credit 

Number of courses        

 Number of meetings        

 Meeting length        

2 Credits 

Number of courses        

 Number of meetings        

 Meeting length        

3 Credits 
(Example) 

Number of courses 119 24 57 14 2 20 4 

Number of meetings  15-45 15-30 15 4-8 3-14 6 6-10 

Meeting length  1-3 hrs. 1-2 hrs. 1 hr. 1-2 hrs. .5-3 hrs. 4 hrs. 1-4 hrs. 

4 Credits 

Number of courses        

 Number of meetings        

 Meeting length        

5 Credits 

Number of courses        

 Number of meetings        

 Meeting length        

 

Other Courses Not Reported 
 
List below any other courses that were not included in the Form for Reporting an Overview of Credit Hour 
Allocations and Instructional Time for Courses. Identify the course names, the number of credits 
allocated, a brief description of how instruction takes place in these courses and how many hours of 



Audience: Institutions  Contact: 800.621.7440 
Published: 2016 © Higher Learning Commission  Page 7 

instruction are provided. (Such courses might include travel, summer term or other courses that do not fit 
in the columns above because they have a different delivery format.) 
 

DR122 Drama-Stagecraft. This is a practicum related to the drama production. Supervised but no set 

classroom hours. Student will spend a full 12 weeks doing stagecraft.  

DR1012 Drama.  This is a 2 hour class with multiple rehearsal times. 

JG399Rw Juniors Global-Rwanda.  This is a summer class in which students meet four times in the 

semester for a seminar and then will be in the field for three weeks. 

JG399Gr Juniors Global-Greece This is a summer class in which students will meet four times in the 

semester for a seminar and then will be three weeks in the field. 

             JG399Sa Juniors Global-South Africa.  This is a summer class in which students meet four times in the 

semester for a seminar and    then will be three weeks in the field.     

Direct Assessment or Competency-Based Programs 

 
An institution must demonstrate that any direct assessment or competency-based programs that it offers 
have appropriate credit hour equivalencies.  
 

1. Provide a list of the academic programs available in direct assessment or competency-based 
format and the required credit hours for each program. Identify the learning objectives for each 
such program.  
Life Experience--students may earn 1 to 3 hours of credit by substantiating that conferneces, workshops, 

work and life experiences have given experience comemsurate with a specified class.  A detailed port-folio 

is required. 
 

2. Explain how the institution sets credit hour equivalencies for these courses and programs and 
otherwise ensures that students have sufficient instructional time and out-of-class work to justify 
the credit allocations for the courses and programs.  
Credit hours are set in accordance with the comparative class that the Life Experience replaces. 

 
3. How does the institution’s credit hour policy explain credit hour allocations or equivalencies 

established by the institution for these types of offerings?  
To apply for credit, students submit a Life Experience Credit Essay and a portfolio demonstrating learning 

that is substantially equivalent to that gained from taking a similar college-level course.  Portfolios will be 

considered for aca-demic credit according to the following criteria: 

1) Experiences for which credit is requested are compatible with the College’s purpose and pro-gram. 

2) The subject area is one in which the College has existing curriculum.  For example, Barclay would 

not award LEC for work in engineering, but might grant credit for work toward a general science class.  

3) The learning experience was a personal experience from which the adult can demonstrate the 

learning of generalized truth and the application of the knowledge gained. 

4) The breadth and depth of learning is substantially equivalent to or exceeds the scope of a traditional 

college-level course in the same subject. 

5) The credit requested does not already appear on the student’s college transcripts. 
 

4. Identify aggregate learning outcomes information the institution has collected for direct 
assessment and competency-based programs and explain how the institution reviewed this 
information and considered it in academic program review and its improvement processes.  
The Life Experience program was initiated specifically for the Advantage program in order for students in 

that program to gain possible credit for life experience.  Since the demise of the Adbnatage program the 
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program has remained in the college catalog but has rarely been used. Students in the degree completion 

program now offered online generaly bring sufficient electives with them or find doing an online class 

more profitable than attempting a portfolio.  The last evaluation of the Life Experience Credit program was 

previous to the onset of the online program in 2008. 
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Section 3: Policy on Credit Hours 

Does the institution have a policy specific to the assignment of credit?  
 Yes 

 No 

 
The institution has policies specific to the assignment of credit at the following levels (check all that 
apply): 

 Institution-wide  

 Delivery-format-specific 

 Department-specific  

 Program-specific 
 
Attach copies of all applicable policies related to the assignment of credit as Supplement A2. 

 

 

Section 4: Total Credit Hour Generation 

 
How many credits does a typical full-time or part-time undergraduate student take during a regular term? 
18 
 
How many credits does a typical full-time or part-time graduate student take during a regular term? 9 
 
Provide the head count of students earning more than the typical credits taken during a regular term in 
the most recent fall and spring semesters/trimesters (or the equivalent, for institutions with quarters or 
non-standard terms). 
 
8 Most Recent Fall Term  2017 Year 

3 Most Recent Spring Term  2018 Year 
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Section 5: Clock Hours 

This worksheet does not apply to all institutions. 

This worksheet is not intended for institutions to demonstrate that they have assigned credit hours 
relative to contact hours in accordance with the Carnegie definition of the credit hour. This worksheet 
solely addresses those programs reported to the Department in clock hours for Title IV purposes. 
Institutions that do not have such programs should not complete this worksheet. 

Answer “Yes” to the statement below only if the institution offers any programs in clock hours or 
programs that must be reported to the Department in clock hours for Title IV purposes even 
though students may earn credit hours for graduation from these programs. For example, any 
program that prepares students for a licensed or professional discipline may need to be reported in clock 
hours to the Department. 

Check with the institution’s financial aid officer to determine if the institution has programs of this nature. 
Such programs typically include those that must be identified in clock hours for state licensure of the 
program or where completing clock hours is a requirement for graduates to apply for licensure or 
authorization to practice the occupation. Such programs might include teacher education, nursing or 
other programs in licensed fields. 

Does the institution report clock hours to the U.S. Department of Education with regard to some 
programs for Title IV purposes?  

 Yes 

 No 

If the answer is Yes, complete the Clock Hour Worksheet. 
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Clock Hour Worksheet 

Only certain institutions must complete this worksheet. 

Please review the following instructions. 

Complete this worksheet only if the institution answered “Yes” in Section 5, indicating that the institution 
offers programs in clock hours OR programs that must be reported to the U.S. Department of Education 
in clock hours for Title IV purposes even though students may earn credit hours for graduation from 
these programs.  

Federal Formula for Minimum Number of Clock Hours of Instruction (34 CFR §668.8): 
 1 semester or trimester hour must include at least 37.5 clock hours of instruction 
 1 quarter hour must include at least 25 clock hours of instruction 
 
Institution name:       
 
Attach as Supplement A3 a list of the academic programs that are reportable in clock hours based on 
the information above.  
 
Does the list in Supplement A3 match the list submitted to the U.S. Department of Education?  

 Yes 

 No 

What is the institution’s credit-to-clock-hour conversion policy?  
      
 
If the credit-to-clock-hour conversion numbers are less than the federal formula, what are the specific 
requirements, if any, for student work outside of class?  
      
 
Attach the institution’s last E-App as Supplement A4. 
 
Attach the institution’s ECAR as Supplement A5. 
 
Attach the institution’s most recent program review as Supplement A6. 
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Part B: Supplemental Materials 

The institution must include with this document the following supplements as PDF documents. 

• Attach a copy of the catalog or other document that contains course descriptions and applicable 
credit hour assignments as Supplement B1. 

• Attach the catalog or other document in which the institution has marked or highlighted any course 
provided by the institution in non-standard terms or compressed format for the term reported. This 
information can also be provided on a separate list that identifies those courses and how to find them 
in the course catalog. Attach this document as Supplement B2. 

• Attach as Supplement B3 the course schedule for the most recently completed fall and spring terms, 
including times and meeting dates for all classes at all locations and in all delivery formats. If the 
course schedule is not available as a separate document, include a URL to access this information 
online. If a password is required to access this information, include that password. 

Note: The peer review team may ask for additional data to examine credit hour production by educational 
program and by course. These data may include separate breakdowns for general education as well as 
by delivery format, by course academic unit (semester, quarter, etc.), by level, or by location. 
 



Barclay College  Supplement A1 

Form for Reporting an Overview of Credit Hour Allocations  

and Instructional Time for Courses 
 

Term and Length:                                      Spring 2018 Campus, 17 weeks  

 

 

# Credits 

Awarded 

Instructiona

l Time 

Course Formats 

1. 

FTF 

Courses 

2. 

Mixed 

FTF 

Courses 

3. 

Distance 

Courses 

4. 

Corresp 

Courses 

5. 

Independent

/ Directed 

Study 

Courses 

6. 

Weekend 

College 

7. 

Internship/ 

Practica 

Courses 

1 Credit 

# of courses 18  1  1   

 # of meetings 15  17  3-14   

 Meeting length  1 hour   1 hour  1-3   

2 Credits 

# of courses 5      1 

 # of meetings 15      12-15 

 Meeting length 
2 

hours 

     1 hour 

3 Credits 

# of courses 89    12  5 

 # of meetings  30-45    3-14  3-14 

 Meeting length  1 hour    1-3      1-3 

12 Credits 

# of courses 1       

 # of meetings          
 Meeting length               

 

The 12 credit hour class is the Supervised Student Teaching course. 

 

Term and Length:                                      Spring 2018 MA, 18 weeks  

 

 

# Credits 

Awarded 

Instructiona

l Time 

Course Formats 

1. 

FTF 

Courses 

2. 

Mixed 

FTF 

Courses 

3. 

Distance 

Courses 

4. 

Corresp 

Courses 

5. 

Independent

/ Directed 

Study 

Courses 

6. 

Weekend 

College 

7. 

Internship/ 

Practica 

Courses 

3 Credits 

# of courses   14  1   

 # of meetings         

 Meeting length 
   1-3 

hours 

 1-3 hours     

 

  



 

 
Term and Length:                                      Spring 2018 Online, 18 weeks  

 

 

# Credits 

Awarded 

Instructiona

l Time 

Course Formats 

1. 

FTF 

Courses 

2. 

Mixed 

FTF 

Courses 

3. 

Distance 

Courses 

4. 

Corresp 

Courses 

5. 

Independent

/ Directed 

Study 

Courses 

6. 

Weekend 

College 

7. 

Internship/ 

Practica 

Courses 

1 Credit 

# of courses     1   

 # of meetings     18   

 Meeting length         1-hour     

2 Credits 

# of courses     1   

 # of meetings     18   

 Meeting length       1 hour    

3 Credits 

# of courses   19  1   

 # of meetings    30  18   

 Meeting length 
   3-4 

hours 

 1 hour     

 



Supplement A2 

Credit Hour Policy 

From the Faculty Handbook 

 



Appendix B 

Copy of pages from the Student Handbook Covering Complaint 

Policy/Procedure 

 

  



 



 

 



 

 



Appendix C 

Report of Complains and Resolutions since April 2016 

Only three complaints have been logged since the last HLC visit to campus: 

 

Area of Concern 2017-

2018 

Action 

Two Female students when into Coppock 

Hall into a room of the opposite sex around 

midnight. It was not open dorms and it was 

past the allowed visiting hours in the guy’s 

lobby.  

9/14/17 I met with the girls and the RA of the male 

student’s hall. The girls acknowledged that 

they were wrong and knew that they were 

breaking the rules, but didn’t think it was  big 

deal. They said they were loud because they 

weren’t trying to be sneaky, they just went in 

to get food. We discussed how this could 

have been a very bad situation for them or for 

other guys in the dorm and that this was not 

appropriate. They were fined and asked to 

abide by the college standards.  

 A member of the community called stating 

that a college student had written “racist” 

on her sidewalk because she had a 

confederate flag hanging from her porch. 

She had notified the authorities, but did not 

have any more information available about 

who she thought vandalized her sidewalk.  

11/2017 I called the resident back but did not get an 

answer nor an answering machine. She never 

called back again.  

 A professor shared with me about a concern 

that a student might be pregnant. The girl’s 

father is aware and wanted to have the 

rumors evaluated because it doesn’t seem to 

be true.  All of the conversations with the 

father happened between him and the 

professor, not with me.  

12/11/17 I talked with the student, prior to her dad 

requesting that the rumor be addressed. The 

student said she was not pregnant and that 

there was nothing to worry about. She did 

not say that these were just rumors nor was 

she upset by what she was hearing. Due to 

the fact that the student herself did not 

request that further action be taken, we did 

not pursue any further conversations.  

 



Appendix D 

Transfer Policies 

 

From the Student Handbook 

 

From the Faculty/Staff Handbook 

 

From the Campus Catalog: 

 

 



From the Online Catalog 

 

From the Registrar’s Manual: 

 



 

 



Articulation Agreements 

(See www.barclaycollege.edu at “About Barclay College”) 

Barclay College has articulation agreements with several area colleges.  These agreements 

allow Barclay students to complete undergraduate programs at Pratt Community College 

(nursing as part of the Barclay College Mission Nursing major), Hutchinson Community 

College (a registered nursing program in conjunction with the Barclay College Missions 

Nursing major), and Fort Hays State University (an online major in nursing, and an online 

major in education.)  

A graduate level agreement allows Barclay graduates with the bachelor of science degree to 

earn up to 12 hours of joint credit with Fort Hays State University.  These credits will apply 

to both the Bachelor’s degree at Barclay and the graduate programs at Fort Hays in either 

psychology or education. A second graduate level agreement gives graduates of ABHE 

accredited colleges 100% free tuition for their first three Barclay classes in the graduate 

program. 

Barclay College Mission Nursing with nursing program at Pratt Community College. 

Barclay College Mission Nursing with nursing program at Hutchinson Community 

College. 

A graduate studies pathway opportunity between Barclay College and Fort Hays 

State University 

ABHE Alumni Award 

 

 

 



Articulation Agreements 

Barclay College has articulation agreements with several area colleges.  These agreements 

allow Barclay students to complete undergraduate programs at Pratt Community College 

(nursing as part of the Barclay College Mission Nursing major), Hutchinson Community 

College (a registered nursing program in conjunction with the Barclay College Missions 

Nursing major), and Fort Hays State University (an online major in nursing, and an online 

major in education.)  

A graduate level agreement allows Barclay graduates with the bachelor of science degree to 

earn up to 12 hours of joint credit with Fort Hays State University.  These credits will apply 

to both the Bachelor’s degree at Barclay and the graduate programs at Fort Hays in either 

psychology or education. A second graduate level agreement gives graduates of ABHE 

accredited colleges 100% free tuition for their first three Barclay classes in the graduate 

program. 

Barclay College Mission Nursing with nursing program at Pratt Community College. 

The nursing major is a joint program with Pratt Community College.  Students begin the 

course work at Barclay College to complete prerequisites.  They must apply to the Nursing 

program at Pratt before completing the second year at Barclay to assure that they will be 

able to complete the full program. 

 

Students enrolled in the program will complete two years at Barclay College prior to 

enrolling in the PCC program.  When doing courses at PCC they will continue to live in the 

Barclay dorm.  A financial aid articulation agree will be put in effect to cover financial aid.  

Credits earned in the program at PCC will be transferred onto the Barclay College transcript 

and show as hours earned in a joint program. Upon completion of the program, the student 

will be graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree from Barclay and either the Associates 

of Arts degree or the Bachelor of Science degree from Pratt Community College. 

 

Prospective students should contact, Steven King, at steven.king@barclaycollege.edu for 

details. 

 

Barclay College Mission Nursing with nursing program at Hutchinson Community 

College. 

The nursing major is a joint program with Hutchinson Community College with the bulk of 

the HCC classes being online.  Students begin the course work at Barclay College to 

complete prerequisites.  They must apply to the Nursing program at Hutchinson before 

completing the second year at Barclay to assure that they will be able to complete the full 

program. 

 

Students enrolled in the program will complete two years at Barclay College prior to 

enrolling in the Hutchinson online program. Some lab classes will require attendance in 

Hutchinson.  When doing the course through HCC they will continue to live in the Barclay 

dorm.  A financial aid articulation agree will be put in effect to cover financial aid.  Credits 

earned in the program at PCC will be transferred onto the Barclay College transcript and 

show as hours earned in a joint program. Upon completion of the program, the student will 

be graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree from Barclay and the Bachelor of Science 

degree from Hutchinson Community College. 

 



Prospective students should contact, Steven King, at steven.king@barclaycollege.edu for 

details. 

 

A graduate studies pathway opportunity between Barclay College and Fort Hays 

State University 

This graduate pathway program opportunity enables a student who follows the prescribed 

plan in conjunction with a departmental advisor to earn up to 12 graduate credit hours from 

FHSU.  These 12 hours will count toward the MS in Psychology at FHSU, if the student is 

accepted into the graduate program.  The graduate credits earned can be applied to any of 

the following MS degree programs in Psychology: clinical, school, experimental, and general 

psychology with a focus on community college teaching. 

 

Prospective students should contact the psychology department at Barclay College for 

details. 

 

ABHE Alumni Award 

Graduates of ABHE accredited colleges may earn free tuition for their first three Bible 

Theology classes in the graduate program at Barclay College.  The student must 

successfully complete the entire semester in which the Bible Theology classes are done. 

 Potential graduate students should contact shelly.barbar@barclaycollege.edu for details. 

 

 

 



Appendix F 

Transfer Practices at Barclay College 

 

Transfer credit decisions are made routinely by the Registrar who evaluates tran-

scripts and enters applicable courses into the student information system. Cases that 

do not align well with the policy are shared with the VP for Academics for approval. 

 

The Registrar follows a set pattern for transfer of credit. When a copy of the transfer 

student’s transcript is received the registrar examines it noting whether the college 

is accredited, what kind of credits (semester or quarter) it contains, and which 

courses listed have a C or better grades.  He transfers the hours from the transcript 

to the college’s SIS transferring classes that fill requirements for programs and trans-

ferring in extra hours as blocks of general education electives. 

 

The end result will be a page of data such as this: 

 

 
 

Any transfer not approved will be flagged as pending until approval is given or re-

jected if approval is not given. Once the classes are in the SIS the Registrar runs up 

a program audit to check whether the guidelines for the percentage of transfer hours 

has been exceeded or not. If more than 40% of the major core is represented by 

transfer than the Registrar adjusts the hours taken in.  If the percentage is slightly 

over the amount then he has the opportunity to ask the faculty for approval. (See for 

example Faculty Minute 16/17-26). In addition he will check that the 70% for the 

overall degree is not exceeded. 



A report for transfers may be run: 

(student names left off)) 

 

 
 

The percentage of transfers for students in the Bible, Core and total categories are 

reported to the faculty: 

 

 



Appendix G 

Costs for Verification Procedures 

 

There are no additional costs for verification procedures. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Barclay College 
Haviland, Kansas  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Barclay College (a nonprofit organization), 
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related 
statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Barclay College as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 



Barclay College 
Page 2 
 
 

2 

Other Matters 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 17, 
2016, on our consideration of Barclay College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Barclay College’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

 
ADAMS, BROWN, BERAN & BALL, CHTD. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
November 17, 2016 
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2016 2015
Current Assets

Cash $ 77,027         153,693      
Investments 189,495       182,825      
Tuition Receivable, Net of Allowance 18,795         37,789        
Current Portion of Graduate Student Loans Receivable 18,464         35,745        
Current Portion of Note Receivable -               483             
Current Portion of Unconditional Promises 

to Give, Net of Allowance 398,349       233,853      
Inventory 9,504           8,501          

Total Current Assets 711,634       652,889      

Property and Equipment
Buildings 5,674,799    5,664,456   
Equipment 1,467,636    1,449,919   
Land 582,380       582,380      
Construction in Progress 396,091 339,497      
Accumulated Depreciation (2,849,366)   (2,687,732)  

Net Property and Equipment 5,271,540    5,348,520   

Other Assets
Cash Temporarily Restricted 3,144,674 437,021      
Cash Held for Others Under Agency Transactions 18,893         23,069        
Investments Temporarily Restricted 945,340       946,998      
Graduate Student Loans Receivable, Net of Current Portion 25,409         93,350        
Note Receivable, Net of Current Portion -               13,725        
Assets Held in Charitable Remainder Unitrust 89,020         89,914        
Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Others 96,165         116,174      
Beneficial Interest in Assets Held in a Trust 3,131,816 -              
Restricted Endowment Investments 250,014       265,717      
Unconditional Promises to Give, Net of Allowance, Net

of Current Portion 432,688       353,076      

Total Other Assets 8,134,019    2,339,044   

Total Assets $ 14,117,193  8,340,453   

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2016 and 2015

ASSETS
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2016 2015
Current Liabilities

Line of Credit $ 700,000         1,200,000     
Current Portion of Long-Term Notes Payable 209,021         205,176        
Current Portion of Liability Under Trust Agreement 4,328 4,350
Current Portion of Annuities Payable 2,397 2,318            
Borrowings From Restricted Cash 521,030         -                
Accounts Payable 116,511         82,669          
Amounts Held for Others Under Agency Transactions 18,893           23,069          
Accrued Liabilities 23,819 32,113          
Deferred Grant Revenue 437,340 -                

Total Current Liabilities 2,033,339      1,549,695     

Long-Term Liabilities
Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 482,676 566,752
Liability Under Trust Agreement, Net of Current Portion 40,821           39,538          
Annuities Payable, Net of Current Portion 16,047           15,729          

Total Long-Term Liabilities 539,544         622,019        

Total Liabilities 2,572,883      2,171,714     

Net Assets
Unrestricted

Undesignated 3,509,681      3,786,563     
Board Designated 112,738         118,522        

Total Unrestricted 3,622,419      3,905,085     

Temporarily Restricted 4,617,105      2,105,153     
Permanently Restricted 3,304,786      158,501        

Total Net Assets 11,544,310    6,168,739     

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 14,117,193    8,340,453     

`

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2016 and 2015
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2016 2015
Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted Revenues and Gains
Student Tuition and Fees $ 3,467,181     3,141,860     
Contributions 1,065,799     991,582        
In-Kind Contributions 20,013          11,988          
Auxiliary Enterprises 896,808        825,343        
Federal Grant Revenue 2,015,884     1,767,000     
Private Grant Revenue 45,121 -                
Farm and Royalty Income 41,475          41,584          
Interest and Dividends 21,430          12,800          
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains (Losses) 72,854          (5,365)           
Change in Value of Split Interest Agreements (2,564)           25,259          
Net Transfers Between Permanently Restricted 

From Unrestricted at the Request of the Donor -                (10,489)         
Loss on Sale of Assets -                (512)              
Other Income 67,493          137,881        
Underwater Endowment Activity (14,807)         (458)              

Total Unrestricted Revenues and Gains 7,696,687     6,938,473     

Net Assets Released From Restrictions
Satisfaction of Donors' Restrictions 89,862          32,600          

Total Unrestricted Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 7,786,549     6,971,073     

Expenses
Program Services

Instructional 1,463,520     1,386,931     
Auxiliary 662,681        647,353        
Student Services 249,306        266,940        
Scholarships and Grants 3,929,363     3,495,952     
Operations and Maintenance 424,199        451,008        

Total Program Services 6,729,069     6,248,184     

Supporting Services
Administrative and General 1,223,157     1,226,044     
Fundraising 116,989        114,960        

Total Supporting Services 1,340,146     1,341,004     

Total Expenses 8,069,215     7,589,188     

Decrease in Unrestricted Net Assets
 (carried forward) $ (282,666)       (618,115)       

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
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2016 2015
Decrease in Unrestricted Net Assets 

(brought forward) $ (282,666)       (618,115)       

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Contributions 2,591,727     516,522        
Change in Value of Split Interest Agreements (2,154)           666               
Change in Value of Assets Held in a Trust (14,469)         -                
Interest and Dividends 2,083            6,849            
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains 9,820            968               
Underwater Endowment Activity 14,807          458               
Net Assets Released From Restrictions (89,862)         (32,600)         

Increase in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 2,511,952     492,863        

Permanently Restricted Net Assets
Contributions 3,146,285     1,000            
Net Transfers Between Unrestricted to Permanently

Restricted at the Request of the Donor -                10,489          

Increase in Permanently Restricted Net Assets 3,146,285     11,489          

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 5,375,571     (113,763)       

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 6,168,739     6,282,502     

Net Assets - End of Year $ 11,544,310   6,168,739     

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
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2016 2015
Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets $ 5,375,571    (113,763)     
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash

Used by Operating Activities
Depreciation 161,634       164,894       
Earnings on Investments (106,187)     (15,252)       
Loss on Sale of Assets -              512              
Change in Value of Assets Held in a Trust 14,469         -              
Contributions Restricted for Long-Term Purposes (6,098,046)  (516,522)     
(Increase) Decrease in

Tuition Receivable 18,994         (11,780)       
Graduate Student Loans Receivable, Net of Current Portion 85,222         18,490         
Note Receivable 14,208         437              
Inventory (1,003)         7,047           
Assets Held in Charitable Remainder Unitrust 894              485              
Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Others 20,009         (1,781)         

Increase (Decrease) in
Accounts Payable 33,842         562              
Accrued Liabilities (8,294)         (559)            
Deferred Grant Revenue 437,340       -              
Liability Under Trust Agreement 1,261           (667)            

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (50,086)       (467,897)     

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Sale (Purchase) of Investments 116,878       (268,953)     
Purchase of Property and Equipment (84,654)       (161,821)     
Sale of Property and Equipment -              85,000         

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 32,224         (345,774)     

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Collection of Contributions Restricted for Long-Term Purposes -              324,625       
Borrowings on Restricted Cash 521,030       -              
Payments on Annuities 397              (25,259)       
Borrowings on Short-Term Debt 300,000       740,000       
Payments on Long-Term Debt (880,231)     (78,316)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (58,804)       961,050       

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (76,666)       147,379       

Cash - Beginning of Year 153,693       6,314           

Cash - End of Year $ 77,027         153,693       

Supplemental Disclosures 
Interest Paid $ 50,805 64,236

For the Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Cash Flows
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of Activities 
Barclay College is a four-year college located in Haviland, Kansas. It offers associate, bachelor, and 
master’s degrees in several areas. 
 
Method of Accounting 
The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. 
 
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash  
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash consists of cash on hand, checking accounts and a 
savings account. It excludes temporarily and permanently restricted cash. 
 
Investments 
Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities 
are reported at their fair values in the statements of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are 
included in the change in net assets. Investment income or loss is included in the increase in unrestricted 
net assets unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law. Investments in certificates of deposits 
with original maturities over 90 days are classified as investments. Certificates of deposit are held as 
collateral for a note payable with Haviland State Bank. 
 
Unconditional Promises to Give 
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net 
realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are 
recorded at the present value of their estimated future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are 
computed using risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received. 
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. Conditional promises to give are not 
included as support until the conditions are substantially met. 
 
Inventory 
Inventory is stated at cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory consists of books, supplies, and clothing 
items that are sold in the Organization’s bookstore. 
 
Property, Equipment and Depreciation 
The Organization capitalizes property and equipment over $2,000. Lesser amounts are expensed.  
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost. Donations of property and equipment are 
recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as unrestricted 
contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose.  Assets donated 
with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash or other assets that must be used to 
acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations 
regarding how long these donated assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are 
reported when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. Real estate is used to secure notes 
payable to JRL Living Trust and Haviland State Bank. Property and equipment are depreciated using the 
straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 60 years. 
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Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $161,634 and $164,894, 
respectively. 
 
Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets 
Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Organization has been limited by donors to 
a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be 
maintained by the Organization in perpetuity. 
 
Donor Restricted Gifts 
Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Organization are reported at fair value at the 
date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are 
reported at fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or 
permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated 
assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction or purpose restriction 
is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported 
in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions 
whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in 
the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Contributions of noncash assets are recorded at their fair values in the period received. Contributions of 
donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets or that require specialized skills or 
knowledge, are provided by individuals possessing those skills or knowledge, and would typically need to 
be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at their fair values in the period received. 
 
Advertising 
The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense for the years 
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $89,638 and $70,741, respectively. 
 
Income Taxes 
The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes on related income under Section 501(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (IRC), as an Organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3). Further, the 
Organization has been classified as an Organization that is not a private foundation under IRC Section 
509(a) and, as such, contributions to the Organization qualify for deduction as charitable contributions. 
However, income generated from activities unrelated to the Organization’s exempt purpose is subject to 
tax under IRC Section 511. The Organization did not have any material unrelated business income tax 
liability for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles prescribe the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and a 
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement 
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. There was no effect on the financial 
statements as a result of adopting this interpretation as the Organization believes it does not have any 
material uncertain tax positions reflected in its financial statements. Tax years that remain subject to 
examination in the Organization’s major jurisdictions are for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 
2014. 
 
Sales Taxes 
The Organization collects sales taxes from customers and remits the entire amount to the State. The 
Organization’s accounting policy is to exclude the tax collected and remitted to the State from revenues 
and cost of sales. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH 
 
Cash consists of cash on hand, checking accounts and a savings account. The total carrying amounts of 
the Organization’s deposits were $2,719,564 and $613,783 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The 
bank balances were $2,748,386 and $665,538 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The 
Organization’s cash balance was insured by FDIC for $250,000 at June 30, 2016 and 2015. The 
Organization had uninsured cash balances of $2,498,386 and $415,538 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively. 
 
NOTE 3 – CASH HELD FOR OTHERS UNDER AGENCY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Cash held for others under agency transactions is available for the following purposes: 
 

  2016  2015 
Bieshaar $ 7,518  6,882 
Men’s Dorm  80  265 
Alumni  1,634  5,939 
Girl’s Dorm  157  215 
Student Council  9,504  9,768 

     
Total $ 18,893  23,069 

 
NOTE 4 – INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT RETURN 
 
Investments are stated at fair value on a recurring basis using quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets and consist of money market funds, certificates of deposit, mutual funds, stocks and bonds as 
follows: 

   
 

 
2016  2015 

Money Market Funds   $ 44,042  23,613 
Certificates of Deposit    700,000  700,000 
Common Stock    427,707  12,899 
Preferred Stock    7,407  - 
Mutual Funds    49,471  438,303 
Government Obligations    56,526  56,283 
Non-governmental Obligations    99,696  164,442 
       
Total Investments   $ 1,384,849  1,395,540 
       
    2016   
  

Unrestricted  
Temporarily 
Restricted  Total 

Interest and Dividends $ 21,119  260  21,379 
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains   72,854  9,820  82,674 
Investment Fees         (39,331)  -        (39,331) 
       
Net Investment Return  $ 54,642  10,080  64,722 
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  2015 
  

Unrestricted  
Temporarily 
Restricted  Total 

Interest and Dividends $ 12,831  4,937  17,768 
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains 

(Losses) 
 

         (5,365)  968           (4,397) 
Investment Fees           (7,493)  -        (7,493) 
       Net Investment Return $              (27)  5,905  5,878 

 
NOTE 5 – TUITION RECEIVABLE 
 
An allowance for uncollectible accounts is calculated by management and is based upon historical 
collections. Receivables are turned over to collections and written off when management determines they 
are no longer collectible. 
 
Tuition receivable consisted of the following at June 30: 

    2016  2015 
Tuition Receivable   $     339,327       390,209 
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts        (320,532)     (352,420) 
       Tuition Receivable, Net of Allowance                                                       $       18,795       37,789 

 
NOTE 6 – NOTE RECEIVABLE  
 
The College sold property on March 1, 2000 for $20,000. The sales price consisted of $2,000 in cash and 
a term note of $18,000. The term note bears interest at 9%. Interest and principal payments in the 
amount of $145 are due monthly until maturity at March 1, 2030. The note was repaid in the year ended 
June 30, 2016. As of June 30, 2015 the balance of the note receivable was $14,208. 
 
NOTE 7 – UNCONDITIONAL PROMISES TO GIVE 
 
Included in unconditional promises to give are the following pledges: 
 

  2016  2015 
Pledges to be received within one year $ 441,679  266,486 
Less:  Allowance for uncollectible pledges          (43,330)          (32,633) 
Pledges to be received from one to five years  677,152  503,655 
Less:  Allowance for uncollectible pledges        (216,675)        (128,876) 
Less:  Discount to present value          (27,789)          (21,703) 
     
Net Unconditional Promises to Give $ 831,037  586,929 
     Pledges due in:     
Less than one year $ 398,349  233,853 
One to five years  432,688  353,076 

     
Total Pledges Due $ 831,037  586,929 
     Unrestricted Pledges $ 5,552  8,970 
Temporarily Restricted – Fine Arts Center  825,485  577,959 
     
Total Pledges Due $ 831,037  586,929 
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The discount rate was 2.84% for 2016 and 3.34% for 2015 for pledges made in those years. 
 
In addition to the unconditional promises to give reported above, Barclay College received the following 
conditional promise to give, which is not recognized as an asset in the statements of financial position. 
 

  2016  2015 
Promise to Give Conditional Upon Construction     

of a Fine Arts Center $ 27,000  850,000   
 
NOTE 8 - GRADUATE STUDENT LOANS RECEIVABLE 
 
The outstanding balances are subject to monthly compounding of interest. The applicable interest rate 
was 5% at June 30, 2016 and 2015. There are no payments due from currently enrolled students and 
payments become due two months following the completion of degree or termination of enrollment in any 
college. The balance on the receivable is due within 48 months of the first payment and requires monthly 
installments. Interest accruals are not made on accounts that are more than 120 days delinquent and the 
accounts are turned over to a collection agency at this time. The Organization will then make a 
determination of collectability and write off the remainder of the account no later than one year after 
becoming delinquent. No allowance for doubtful accounts is used on receivables prior to June 30, 2015, 
the direct write-off method is used. This policy is not in accordance with generally acceptable accounting 
principles; however, the difference is deemed immaterial. New graduate student loans receivable as of 
June 30, 2016 are included in tuition receivable and follow the methodology for determining an allowance 
for doubtful accounts that of tuition receivable. 
 
NOTE 9 – ASSETS HELD IN CHARITABLE REMAINDER UNITRUST 
 
A donor has established a charitable remainder unitrust in which Barclay College is the trustee and is to 
receive the assets at the trust’s termination. However, during the term of the trust, distributions must be 
made to the beneficiaries designated in the trust agreement at 5% of the value of the trust assets at the 
beginning of the year. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the total value of the trust was as follows: 
 

      Change in 
  2016  2015  Value 
Troyer Charitable Remainder Unitrust $ 89,020  89,914  (894) 

 
The present value of Barclay College’s liability to the beneficiaries at June 30, 2016 and 2015 is as 
follows: 

      Change in 
  2016  2015  Value 
Liability Under Trust Agreement $   45,149       43,888  (1,261) 
Less Current Portion     (4,328)     (4,350)              (22)      
       
Total Long-Term Portion $   40,821      39,538  (1,283) 

 
The discount rate used to calculate the present value was 2.84% and 3.34% as of June 30, 2016 and 
2015, respectively. 
 
Current maturities of the liability for the next five years and in five year increments thereafter based on 
estimated life expectancy are as follows: 
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Year Ended June 30  Amount Due 
2017 $ 4,328 
2018  3,998 
2019  3,693 
2020  3,413 
2021  3,152 

2022-2026  12,500 
2027-2031  8,409 
2032-2036  5,656 

   
Total $ 45,149 

 
NOTE 10 - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS 
 
In prior years, Barclay College irrevocably transferred $93,845 to the South Central Community 
Foundation to establish an endowment fund. Additional monies have been transferred by Barclay College 
since the inception of this fund.  Under the terms of the agreement, the College is able to receive 5.50% of 
the annual market value of the endowed fund less any fees or administrative costs allocated to the fund 
by the South Central Community Foundation. The College can receive this distribution annually. 
 
At the time of the transfers, the Organization granted South Central Community Foundation variance 
power. That power gives South Central Community Foundation the right to distribute the investment 
income to another not-for-profit organization of its choice if Barclay College ceases to exist or if the 
governing board of South Central Community Foundation determines that continued payments to Barclay 
College are unnecessary, obsolete, inappropriate, incapable of fulfillment, impractical, illegal, or 
inconsistent with South Central Community Foundation's mission. The fair value of the investment was 
$96,165 and $116,174 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 
 
NOTE 11 – BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD IN A TRUST 
 
A donor has directed that the residue of his trust be given to Barclay College upon his death according to 
the terms of the Trust agreement. All funds and property which may be contributed to the College 
pursuant to the Trust shall constitute and be known as the Endowment Fund. The Endowment Fund shall 
be part of and shall be invested and maintained as part of the College’s permanent endowment, so long 
as the Endowment Fund is used according to the terms of the Trust agreement. As of June 30, 2016 and 
2015, the total value of the trust was $3,131,816 and $- and no funds have been disbursed to the College 
to be invested in the Endowment Fund. At least 80% of the Endowment Fund income shall be used to 
fund the Chair and the business department. Further, the Investment Contest shall be funded from the 
remaining Endowment Fund income. Thereafter, the remainder of the Endowment Fund income may be 
used at the discretion of the Barclay College Trustees. Any Endowment Fund income not distributed must 
be reinvested with the principal of the Endowment. 
 
NOTE 12 – COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
Paid Time Off 
Twelve-month, full-time and part-time staff of Barclay College are entitled to 20 days of paid time off per 
year. Paid time off for part-time employees is pro-rated. Administrators are entitled to 25 days of paid time 
off per year. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the College changed the paid time off policy to 
allow for up to 10 days of unused paid time off to be carried over to the next year. No payment for unused 
paid time off will be paid upon termination. The potential liability for accrued paid time off at June 30, 2016 
and 2015 was $27,734 and $29,978, respectively, which is not reflected in the financial statements. 
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Sick Leave 
Full-time administration and staff are entitled to one sick day per month for each contract month for a total 
of 12 days (96 hours) per fiscal year. Part-time employees will have sick leave prorated according to the 
number of hours worked. Up to 12 days (96 hours) of unused or uncompensated sick leave may be 
carried forward each year to a maximum accumulation of 60 days (480 hours). The maximum number of 
days (hours) that may be accumulated will be prorated for part-time employees. Unused or 
uncompensated sick leave will not be paid to an employee in the event of termination. The potential 
liability for sick leave at June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $249,735 and $271,157, respectively, which is not 
reflected in the financial statements. 
 
NOTE 13 – REVOLVING LINES OF CREDIT 
 
The Organization is responsible for the following lines of credit at June 30, 2016 and 2015: 
 

  2016  2015 
Line of credit with Haviland State Bank, interest at 3.00%, secured by 
certificate of deposit, matures August 29, 2016. $ 700,000  700,000 
     
Line of credit with Haviland State Bank, interest at 6.00%, secured by 
real estate, matured July 18, 2015.  -  500,000 
     

Total Revolving Lines of Credit $ 700,000  1,200,000 
 
NOTE 14 – LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE 
 
Long-term notes payable consisted of the following at June 30: 
 

 Interest Rate  2016  2015 
Fred R. and Esther M. Johnson Trust Payable, matures 

June 13, 2016, unsecured. 3.00% $ -  100,000 
Fred R. and Esther M. Johnson Trust Payable, matures 

June 13, 2017, unsecured. 3.00%  100,000  - 
JRL Living Trust Note Payable, matures February 18, 

2018, unsecured. 4.00%  44,468  69,763 
JRL Living Trust Note Payable, matures May 30, 2020, 

secured by real estate. 5.00%  90,295  110,757 
Haviland State Bank Note Payable, matures July 1, 

2021, secured by real estate. 5.75%  98,752  114,952 
Withdrawal Gift Trust Agreement, due on demand, 

unsecured. 7.00%  5,000  5,000 
Kevin and Gayle Mortimer Note Payable, matures on 

July 29, 2015, unsecured. 3.00%  20,000  20,000 
Laura Davis Trust Note Payable, matures July 2, 2018, 

unsecured. 3.00%  20,000  20,000 
JRL Living Trust Note Payable, matures March 20, 

2023, unsecured. 4.00%  313,182  331,456 
      

Total Long-Term Notes Payable   691,697  771,928 
Less: Current Portion       (209,021)     (205,176) 

      
Total Long-Term Notes Payable, Net of  

Current Portion 
 

$ 482,676  566,752 
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Annual maturities of long-term debt at June 30 are as follows: 
 

2017  $ 209,021   
2018   88,781   
2019   114,580   
2020   96,822   
2021   79,188   
Thereafter   103,305   
      
Total   $ 691,697   

 
Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $44,749 and $66,734, respectively. 
 
NOTE 15 – ANNUITIES PAYABLE 
 
A donor can make a contribution to the Organization in the form of an annuity. The Organization then 
pays the donor an annuity of a fixed amount over the individual's life. Annuities payable represent the 
present value of a fixed amount due to the donor over the donor's expected life based on his/her age at 
June 30, 2016 and 2015. The present value of these annuities payable was as follows: 
 

  
2016  2015  

Change in 
Value 

Annuities Payable $ 18,444  18,047  397 
 
Annual maturities of annuities payable at June 30 are as follows: 
 

2017  $ 2,397   
2018   2,466   
2019   1,362   
2020   1,400   
2021   1,440   
Thereafter   9,379   
      
Total   $ 18,444   

 
An annuity was moved to a restricted endowed fund after the passing of the lone survivor on May 19, 
2015. Per the annuity agreement, the net investment in the annuity at the death of the last beneficiary is 
to be classified as an endowed fund. The corresponding asset had a fair value of $10,489 at June 30, 
2015. 
 
NOTE 16 – TEMPORARILY AND PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
 
Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and 2015 were available for the following purposes: 
 

   2016  2015 
Scholarships  $ 365,403  379,417 
Designated Projects and Gifts   4,207,831  1,679,710 
Other Projects   43,871  46,026 
      
Total  $ 4,617,105  2,105,153 
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Net assets released from donor restrictions during the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 by incurring 
qualified expenses were as follows: 
 

   2016  2015 
Scholarships  $ 29,752  22,930 
Designated Projects and Gifts   60,110  9,670 
      
Total  $ 89,862  32,600 

 
Permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2016 and 2015 are restricted to investment with the income 
available for scholarships. 
 

   2016  2015 
Scholarships and Library  $ 158,501  158,501 
Bieshaar Trust   3,146,285  - 
      
Total  $ 3,304,786  158,501 

 
Restricted funds are invested by an independent advisor and reviewed by management on a perpetual 
basis.  
 
NOTE 17 – ENDOWMENT FUNDS 
 
The College’s endowment consists of individual funds established for scholarships and library purposes. 
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, net assets 
associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
The College’s governing body has interpreted the State of Kansas Uniform Prudent Management of 
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift 
date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a 
result of this interpretation, the College classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original 
value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the 
permanent endowment and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the 
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The 
remaining portion of donor-restricted endowment funds is classified as temporarily restricted net assets 
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the College in a manner consistent with the 
standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the College considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment 
funds: 
 

1. Duration and preservation of the fund 
2. Purposes of the College and the fund 
3. General economic conditions 
4. Possible effect of inflation and deflation 
5. Expected total return from investment income and appreciation or depreciation of investments 
6. Other resources of the College 
7. Investment policies of the College 
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Barclay College’s long-term financial objectives for its endowment funds are to generate income to 
provide for current needs and to preserve the principal of the endowment funds in order to provide a base 
for generating income to meet future needs. The College’s management is charged with investing and 
managing the endowment funds as a prudent investor would while taking into consideration the purpose, 
terms, and distribution requirements of each endowment fund. In making and implementing investment 
decisions, the College’s management has a duty to diversify the investments of the endowment funds 
unless, under the circumstances, it is not prudent to do so. 
 
The recommended asset allocation of the endowment funds as of June 30, 2016 and 2015 was as 
follows: 
 Minimum Maximum  
Equity 40% 75% 
Fixed Income 20%  50% 
Cash Equivalent 0%  15% 
 
The overall investment policy of the College is to obtain the best possible return on its investments and 
that such return is the sum of the yield (defined as interest, dividends, etc.) and gain (defined as 
appreciation) commensurate with the degree of risk the College is willing to assume in obtaining such 
return. 
 
Endowment funds shall generally be invested for no less than six months prior to the earnings being 
available to use. The earnings and appreciation generated from the endowments will be available for 
expenditure in accordance with the donor’s restrictions. Any distribution from an endowment may not be 
in an amount which invades the endowment’s principal balance. Furthermore, no expenditures are 
allowed from an endowment when the fair value falls below the endowment’s principal balance. 
 
Below is a reconciliation of the activity in the endowment investment accounts. 
 
  Temporarily  Permanently   
  Restricted  Restricted  Total 
Endowment Net Assets - June 30, 2014 $ 116,939  147,012  263,951 
Investment Return       

Investment Income  2,830  -  2,830 
Net Gain (Realized and Unrealized)  493  -  493 

Contributions  -  1,000  1,000 
Net Transfers to Endowments  -  10,489  10,489 
Expenditures           (13,046)  -           (13,046) 
       
Endowment Net Assets - June 30, 2015  107,216  158,501  265,717 
Investment Return       

Investment Income  99  -  99 
Net Gain (Realized and Unrealized)  3,767  -  3,767 

Expenditures           (19,569)  -          (19,569) 
       
Endowment Net Assets – June 30, 2016 $ 91,513  158,501  250,014 
 
The above table includes the cash and investment accounts that are under the control of the College and 
does not include other assets that may be part of an endowment, i.e., pledges, beneficial interests in 
remainder trusts, and/or other receivables. 
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NOTE 18 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
The Organization offers a 403(b) defined contribution retirement plan. This plan allows any qualifying 
employee to contribute a portion of his/her earnings into a tax deferred retirement account. The 
Organization contributes a dollar for dollar match up to 3% of an employee’s wage. This is a self-directed 
plan, which allows each participant to invest his/her contributions in any of a preselected list of investment 
funds. Total employer contributions during 2016 and 2015 were $41,695 and $40,941, respectively. 
 
NOTE 19 - CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Organization receives a significant portion of its revenues from grants, all of which are subject to 
audit by federal and state governments. The ultimate determination of amounts awarded under these 
programs generally is based upon eligibility of students based upon their financial need. Until such audits 
have been completed, there exists a contingency to refund any amount awarded to a student that was not 
eligible for student financial assistance. Management is of the opinion that no material liability will result 
from such audits. 
 
Prior to June 30, 2016, the College notified students of their scholarship award for the 2015-2016 school 
year. The College would be required to fulfill this commitment if the student enrolled in each semester at 
Barclay College and fulfilled other requirements outlined by the College. The total commitment to the 
students was $507,300 at June 30, 2016. A similar commitment of $324,190 existed at June 30, 2015. 
 
NOTE 20 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
 
Accounting guidance establishes the framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair 
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). 
The three levels of fair value hierarchy are described below. 
 
Level 1 
Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
 
Level 2 
Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted 
prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by 
observable market data for substantially the full-term of the assets or liabilities 
 
Level 3 
Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair 
value of the assets or liabilities 
 
The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
Following is a description of the inputs and valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at 
June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015. 
 
Certificates of deposit and money market funds are valued at fair value as reported by the financial 
institution at the close of the period. 
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Stock, non-governmental obligations and government obligations are valued at the closing price reported 
on the active market on which the individual securities are traded. 
 
Mutual funds are valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. The funds are required to 
publish their daily net asset value and to transact at that price. 
 
The beneficial interest in the assets held by the others, beneficial interest in assets held in a trust and the 
charitable remainder unitrust are reported at the College’s proportionate share of the fair value of the 
underlying assets in the trusts or in the assets held by South Central Community Foundation as reported 
by the trustees. These assets are revalued annually by the College based on investment statements 
provided by the third party trustees. 
 
 

  Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2016 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Investments         

Money Market Funds $ 44,042  -  -  44,042 
Certificates of Deposit  700,000  -  -  700,000 
Common Stock  427,707  -  -  427,707 
Preferred Stock  7,407  -  -  7,407 
Mutual Funds  49,471  -  -  49,471 
Government Obligations  56,526  -  -  56,526 
Non-government Obligations  99,696  -  -  99,696 

         
Total Investments  1,384,849  -  -  1,384,849 
         
Split Interest Agreements         

Assets Held in Charitable 
Remainder Unitrust  -  -  89,020  89,020 
Beneficial Interest in Assets 
Held in a Trust  -  -  3,131,816  3,131,816 
Beneficial Interest in Assets 
Held by Others  -  -  96,165  96,165 

         
Total Split Interest Agreements  -  -  3,317,001  3,321,144 
         
Total $ 1,384,849  -  3,317,001  4,701,850 
 
  Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2015 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Investments         

Money Market Fund $ 23,613  -  -  23,613 
Certificates of Deposit  700,000  -  -  700,000 
Mutual Funds  438,303  -  -  438,303 
Government Obligations  56,283  -  -  56,283 
Non-government Obligations  164,442  -  -  164,442 
Stocks  12,899  -  -  12,899 

         
Total Investments  1,395,540  -  -  1,395,540 
          
Split Interest Agreements         

Assets Held in Charitable  -  -  89,914  89,914 
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Remainder Unitrust 
Beneficial Interest in Assets 
Held by Others 

 
-  -  116,174  116,174 

         
Total Split Interest Agreements  -  -  206,088  206,088 
         
Total $ 1,395,540  -  206,088  1,601,628 
 
The carrying values of cash, receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair 
values due to the relatively short periods to maturity of these items or because they are receivable or 
payable on demand. 
 
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although Barclay College believes its 
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different 
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a 
different fair value. 
 
Level 3 Gains and Losses 
The following table sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Organization’s Level 3 assets 
for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015: 
  Level 3 Assets 
  Year Ended 

June 30, 2016 
 Year Ended 

June 30, 2015 
Balance, Beginning of Year $ 206,088  204,792 
Realized Gains  6,266  8,541 
Unrealized Gains Relating to Instruments Still Held at 

the Reporting Date 
 

                   (2,570)                        (686) 
Change in Value of Assets Held in a Trust  (14,469)  - 
Contributions  3,146,285                          - 
Distributions                   (24,599)                     (6,396) 
Purchases, Sales, Issuances and Settlements (Net)  -                        (163) 
     
Balance, End of Year $ 3,317,001  206,088 

 
NOTE 21 - PRINCIPAL INVASIONS 
 
Market declines or expenditures have caused a deficiency in three endowment funds at June 30, 2016. 
The restricted principal and the fair value of this endowment are as follows: 
 

2016 
Number of       

Restricted Accounts  Principal  Fair value  Deficiency 
3 $ 3,166,838  3,152,031  14,807 

 
Market declines or expenditures have caused a deficiency in two endowment funds at June 30, 2015. The 
restricted principal and the fair value of this endowment are as follows: 
 

2015 
Number of       

Restricted Accounts  Principal  Fair value  Deficiency 
2 $ 28,068  27,610  458 
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NOTE 22 – RELATED PARTIES 
 
The Organization had three related parties that were vendors during 2016 and 2015. These vendors 
included Haviland State Bank, who provided banking services (one member of HSB management is a 
member of the Organization’s board), Farmers Coop, from whom fuel was purchased and payment was 
made for repairs for vehicles (manager of gas station is related to an employee of the Organization) and 
Haviland Telephone Company, who provided phone service (employees of telephone company are 
related to two members of the Organizations’ management). Purchases from these vendors totaled 
$36,302 and $40,339 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Organization 
provided Student Financial Aid to students that either worked directly in the business office or the Student 
Financial Aid Office or were related to employees within those offices. The total aid awarded for the years 
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $93,486 and $104,619 respectively. There are no board members 
that are also employees of the Organization. 
 
At June 30, 2016, the Organization had outstanding unconditional promises to give from nine individuals 
who are a board member, employee, or family member of either. The outstanding balance for these nine 
individuals net of allowance totaled $31,078. 
 
At June 30, 2015 the Organization had outstanding unconditional promises to give from 17 individuals 
who are a board member, employee, or family member of either. The outstanding balance for these 17 
individuals net of allowance totaled $98,490. At June 30, 2015 the Organization had outstanding accounts 
receivable balances from two employees that totaled $7,299 and balances from two other related parties 
that totaled $1,442. The Organization also had an outstanding graduate student loan receivable from one 
employee that totaled $2,811. 
 
NOTE 23 – IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
In-kind contributions for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 consisted of donated furniture, fixtures 
for the buildings, library books, and real estate. The total amount of in-kind contributions of goods was 
$20,013 and $11,988 as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Organization does not track 
donated unskilled labor, so these amounts are not recorded in the financial statements. 
 
NOTE 24 – FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 
 
Total fundraising expenses for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 were $116,989 and $114,960, 
respectively. 
 
NOTE 25 – RISKS AND UNCERTIANTIES 
 
Barclay College invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various 
risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain 
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of the investment 
securities will occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect the activities of the College. 
 
The College has tried to minimize the risk associated with these investment securities by having an 
investment committee review the investment activity throughout the year and by having regular meetings 
with the investment company representatives. 
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NOTE 26 – CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK FOR CASH DEPOSITS AT BANKS 
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the College to concentrations of credit risk consist principally 
of cash deposits. Accounts at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(FDIC) up to certain limits. At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the College had approximately $3,198,386 and 
$1,115,538 in excess of FDIC insurance limits, respectively. At June 30, 2016 and 2015 the amount in 
excess includes a certificate of deposit in the amount of $700,000 and $700,000 that is classified as an 
investment in the statements of financial position. 
 
NOTE 27 – RECLASSIFICATION 
 
Certain amounts in the prior periods presented have been reclassified to conform to the current period 
financial statement presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported increase in 
net assets. 
 
NOTE 28 – RESTRICTED FUNDS 
 
During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the College utilized funds set aside for restricted 
purposes for operational purposes. In order to replenish these funds the College took out a note with 
Haviland State Bank and invested the funds in a certificate of deposit in the amount of $700,000. The 
College, however, at June 30, 2016, is still responsible for replenishing approximately $521,030 of 
restricted funds that were utilized for unrestricted purposes. Cash in the amount of $521,030 on the 
statements of financial position have been reclassified to borrowings from restricted cash under current 
liabilities in order to cover the amount necessary for restricted net assets. 
 
NOTE 29 – FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR GENERAL EXPENDITURES WITHIN ONE YEAR 
 

Financial Assets at June 30, 2016 $ 14,117,193 
Less:    
   Property and Equipment  (5,271,540) 
   Inventory  (9,504) 
  8,836,149 
   
Contractual or Donor-Imposed Restrictions:   
    Restricted by Donor with Time or Purpose Restrictions   
        Temporarily Restricted Net Assets  (4,617,105) 
        Permanently Restricted Net Assets  (3,304,786) 
    Board Designated  (112,738) 

   
Financial Assets Available to meet Cash Needs for General 

Expenditures Within One Year 
 
$     801,520 

 
NOTE 30  – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 17, 2016, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Barclay College 
Haviland, Kansas 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Barclay College (a 
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, and the 
related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 17, 2016. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Barclay College’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Barclay College’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Barclay College’s internal 
control. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and a 
significant deficiency. 
 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs (2016-001 and 2016-002) to be material weaknesses. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs (2016-003) to be a significant deficiency. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Barclay College’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Barclay College’s Response to Findings 
 
Barclay College’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Barclay College’s response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
ADAMS, BROWN, BERAN & BALL, CHTD. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
November 17, 2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Barclay College 
Haviland, Kansas 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
We have audited Barclay College’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Barclay 
College’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. Barclay College’s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Barclay College’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
Barclay College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Barclay College’s 
compliance. 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
 
In our opinion, Barclay College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2016. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Barclay College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered Barclay College’s internal control over compliance with the types 
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine 
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Barclay College’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
ADAMS, BROWN, BERAN & BALL, CHTD. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
November 17, 2016 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors' report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

● Material weaknesses identified? X Yes No

● Significant deficiency identified? X Yes None reported

● Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major programs:

● Material weakness identified? Yes X No

● Significant deficiency identified? Yes X None reported

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers

Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster - Title IV
84.063      Federal Pell Grant Program
84.033      Federal Work-Study Program
84.007      Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 
84.268      Federal Direct Student Loans

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

750,000$     

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Unqualified

Unqualified
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SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
A. Material Weakness in Internal Control 
 
2016-001 
 
Criteria or specific requirement 
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that all outstanding and unconditional pledges are recorded 
and properly tracked. 
 
Condition 
The Organization did not adequately record pledges. 
 
Context 
Multiple adjusting entries were necessary to correct the amount recorded as pledges receivable when we 
reconciled the pledges from the original supporting documentation to the SAGE system and to the 
general ledger. 
 
Effect 
The pledges receivable recorded in the financial records of the College could easily be over or 
understated at any point in time. 
 
Cause 
The College did not reconcile the supporting documentation of each individual pledge to what was 
recorded in the SAGE system and did not reconcile the activity recorded in the SAGE system to the 
activity in the general ledger. 
 
Recommendation 
The College should develop a method of recording and subsequently reconciling all pledges in their 
SAGE system and then reconcile the SAGE system to the activity recorded in the general ledger of the 
College. 
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions 
When a pledge is received, a copy of the pledge will be provided to the individual responsible for 
recording donations. The pledge will be recorded in Sage and reported to the receivables specialist in the 
business office. The receivables specialist will then record the pledge in the general ledger. At the end of 
each month, a list of all pledges received during the month will be provided to the VP for Business and 
they will reconcile the general ledger with the Sage system. 

2016-002 
 
Criteria  
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that journal entries are prepared to adjust all trial balance 
accounts to the proper balance at year end. 
 
Condition 
Auditors posted several journal entries to adjust year end balances to the correct balance. 
 
Context 
Multiple adjusting entries were necessary to correct the amounts recorded in the financial statements; the 
total effect on Net Assets was an increase of $3,223,378. 
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2016-002 (continued) 
 
Effect 
Several adjustments could materially misstate the financial statements. 
 
Cause 
The Organization passed on making several journal entries at year end. 
 
Recommendation 
Procedures should be established and implemented where the Organization reconciles all year end 
balance sheet accounts and posts the needed journal entries to adjust them.  
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions 
The Organization will make the journal entries needed to adjust the financial statements at year end. 
 
B. Significant Deficiency in Internal Control 
 
2016-003 
 
Criteria or specific requirement 
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that employees do not have incompatible duties. 
 
Condition 
The Organization did not have adequate segregation of duties. 
 
Context 
This finding was prevalent and was discovered throughout the entire auditing procedures of the financial 
statement audit. Areas in which these findings were particularly a problem included cutoff of income and 
expenses at year end, drafting of the financial statements, etc. 
 
Effect 
Management may not become aware of problems or irregularities in a timely manner. 
 
Cause 
The size of the Organization precludes management from hiring additional personnel in order to have 
adequate segregation of duties. 
 
Recommendation 
The Organization should implement procedures to ensure segregation of duties in the receipts and 
disbursements areas. Also, involvement of the Board can mitigate the risk of errors or fraud. The Board 
should remain involved in the financial affairs of the Organization to provide oversight and independent 
review functions. 
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions 
The Organization is aware that employees have incompatible duties; however, due to the size of the 
Organization, it would not be feasible to hire additional personnel. 
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SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
No material findings or questioned costs are required to be disclosed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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2015-001 
 
Condition 
The Organization did not adequately record pledges. 
 
Recommendation 
The College should develop a method of recording and subsequently reconciling all pledges in their 
SAGE system and then reconcile the SAGE system to the activity recorded in the general ledger of the 
College. 
 
Current Status 
The Organization continues to work on this area; however, this is still an issue for the current year and 
explained in the schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
2015-002 
 
Condition 
The Organization did not have adequate segregation of duties. 
 
Recommendation 
Procedures should be established and implemented where the Organization implements segregation of 
duties in receipts and expenditures cycles and implements additional internal controls. Also, involvement 
of the Board can mitigate the risk of errors or fraud. The Board should remain involved in the financial 
affairs of the Organization to provide oversight and independent review functions. 
 
Current Status 
The Organization continues to work on this area; however, this is still an issue for the current year and 
explained in the schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
2015-003 
 
Condition 
We found one instance where a student was over awarded federal funds for a Pell grant in the fall 
semester in the amount of $319. 
 
Recommendation 
The Organization needs to implement a new process or revise its current review process of determining a 
student’s award amount. 
 
Current Status 
The Organization has implemented this recommendation and there were no instances of noncompliance 
during our testing of credit balances for the current year. 
 



See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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Federal Agency or
CFDA Pass-through Federal

Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education

Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster - Title IV

Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 N/A $ 580,635

Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 N/A 40,692

Federal Supplemental Educational
Opportunity Grants 84.007 N/A 13,226

Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 N/A 1,381,332

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 2,015,885

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-through Grantor/

Program Title
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NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
Barclay College and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). 
 
NOTE 2 – INDIRECT COST RATE 
 
The College has elected not to use the 10% de minimis cost rate allowed under Section 200.414(f) of the 
Uniform Guidance. 
 
NOTE 3 - FEDERAL DIRECT STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM 
 
The Federal Direct Student Loan Program is a program where a student or student's parent applies for a 
federal loan. When the loan is approved, the money is transferred to a bank account in Barclay 
College's name, but the loan funds are designated for the individual student. 
 
NOTE 4 - MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
The Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (FSEOG) program provides grants to eligible 
undergraduate students with priority given to Pell grant recipients who have the lowest expected family 
contributions. Barclay College is required by the U.S. Department of Education to provide matching 
contributions to the FSEOG program. Federal funds pay up to 75% of the FSEOG grants. The 
Organization is required to match the remaining 25%. The Organization provided $4,291 for the matching 
contributions for the FSEOG grants for the year ended June 30, 2016, which was greater than the 
required matching amount. 
 
The Federal Work-Study (FWS) program provides part-time employment to eligible undergraduate and 
graduate students who need the earnings to help meet costs of postsecondary education. Barclay 
College is required by the U.S. Department of Education to provide matching funds to the FWS program.  
Federal funds pay up to 75% of the compensation paid to students. The Organization is required to match 
the remaining 25%. The Organization provided $14,298 for the matching contributions for the FWS 
program for the year ended June 30, 2016, which satisfied the 25% matching requirement. 
 
NOTE 5 - ADMINISTRATIVE COST ALLOWANCE 
 
Barclay College can receive up to a 5% administrative cost allowance from the U.S. Department of 
Education for administering the federal awards program. The Organization received $705 as an 
administrative cost allowance, which is less than the 5% administrative cost allowance allowed for the 
year ended June 30, 2016. 
 



BARCLAY COLLEGE 
 

Financial Statements With Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 



BARCLAY COLLEGE 
Financial Statements With Independent Auditors’ Report 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report ....................................................................................................................... 1 
 
Statements of Financial Position .................................................................................................................. 3 
 
Statements of Activities ................................................................................................................................. 5 
 
Statements of Cash Flows ............................................................................................................................ 7 
 
Notes to Financial Statements ...................................................................................................................... 8 
 
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 

Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 
in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards .......................................................................... 24 

 
Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control 

Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance ......................................................................... 26 
 

Supplementary Information 
 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ............................................................................................. 29 
 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings ................................................................................................ 33 
 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ............................................................................................ 35 
 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards .............................................................................. 36 
 



1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
Barclay College 
Haviland, Kansas  

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Barclay College (a nonprofit organization), 
which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related 
statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Barclay College as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the changes in its net assets 
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required 
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the Unites States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 03, 
2018, on our consideration of Barclay College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Barclay College’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Barclay College’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
ADAMS, BROWN, BERAN & BALL, CHTD. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
February 03, 2018 
 



2017 2016
Current Assets

Cash $ 167,673        -               
Investments 180,137        189,495        
Tuition Receivable, Net of Allowance 21,677          18,795          
Current Portion of Graduate Student Loans Receivable 11,612          18,464          
Current Portion of Unconditional Promises 

to Give, Net of Allowance 322,297        398,349        
Inventory 13,261          9,504            

Total Current Assets 716,657        634,607        

Property and Equipment
Buildings 5,764,950     5,674,799     
Equipment 1,489,725     1,467,636     
Land 406,380        406,380        
Construction in Progress 3,828,120 396,091        
Accumulated Depreciation (3,008,298)   (2,849,366)   

Net Property and Equipment 8,480,877     5,095,540     

Other Assets
Cash Temporarily Restricted 1,433,696 3,582,014
Cash Held for Others Under Agency Transactions 31,792          18,893          
Investments Temporarily Restricted 942,830        945,340        
Graduate Student Loans Receivable, Net of Current Portion 13,847          25,409          
Assets Held in Charitable Remainder Unitrust 89,730          89,020          
Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Others 107,453        96,165          
Beneficial Interest in Assets Held in a Trust 3,143,399     3,131,816     
Temporarily Restricted Land 176,000 176,000        
Restricted Endowment Investments 259,442        250,014        
Unconditional Promises to Give, Net of Allowance, Net

of Current Portion 687,817        432,688        

Total Other Assets 6,886,006     8,747,359     

Total Assets $ 16,083,540 14,477,506   

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2017 and 2016

ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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2017 2016
Current Liabilities

Line of Credit $ 1,200,000      700,000        
Current Portion of Long-Term Notes Payable 216,781         209,021        
Current Portion of Liability Under Trust Agreement 4,373              4,328
Current Portion of Annuities Payable 807                 2,397             
Borrowings From Restricted Cash -                 881,343        
Accounts Payable 620,136         116,511        
Amounts Held for Others Under Agency Transactions 31,792           18,893           
Accrued Liabilities 74,804 23,819           
Deferred Grant Revenue 298,123 437,340        

Total Current Liabilities 2,446,816      2,393,652     

Long-Term Liabilities
Notes Payable, Net of Current Portion 373,976 482,676
Liability Under Trust Agreement, Net of Current Portion 41,015 40,821           
Annuities Payable, Net of Current Portion 17,276 16,047           

Total Long-Term Liabilities 432,267         539,544        

Total Liabilities 2,879,083      2,933,196     

Net Assets
Unrestricted

Undesignated 7,362,164      3,333,681     
Board Designated 112,698         112,738        

Total Unrestricted 7,474,862      3,446,419     

Temporarily Restricted 2,401,558      4,793,105     
Permanently Restricted 3,328,037      3,304,786     

Total Net Assets 13,204,457    11,544,310   

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 16,083,540  14,477,506   

`

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2017 and 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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2017 2016
Unrestricted Net Assets

Unrestricted Revenues and Gains
Student Tuition and Fees $ 3,951,284     3,467,181     
Contributions 2,503,766     1,065,799     
In-Kind Contributions 11,846          20,013          
Auxiliary Enterprises 936,987        896,808        
Federal Grant Revenue 2,296,867     2,015,884     
Private Grant Revenue 139,217        45,121          
Farm and Royalty Income 35,146          41,475          
Interest and Dividends 8,423            21,430          
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains 7,726            72,854          
Change in Value of Split Interest Agreements (3,270)           (2,564)           
Net Transfers Between Permanently Restricted 

From Unrestricted at the Request of the Donor (11,021)         -                
Other Income 185,271        67,493          
Underwater Endowment Activity (3,814)           (14,807)         

Total Unrestricted Revenues and Gains 10,058,428   7,696,687     

Net Assets Released From Restrictions
Satisfaction of Donors' Restrictions 2,637,833     89,862          

Total Unrestricted Revenues, Gains, and Other Support 12,696,261   7,786,549     

Expenses
Program Services

Instructional 1,629,533     1,463,520     
Auxiliary 645,789        662,681        
Student Services 255,094        249,306        
Scholarships and Grants 4,312,549     3,929,363     
Operations and Maintenance 458,552        424,199        

Total Program Services 7,301,517     6,729,069     

Supporting Services
Administrative and General 1,294,779     1,223,157     
Fundraising 71,522          116,989        

Total Supporting Services 1,366,301     1,340,146     

Total Expenses 8,667,818     8,069,215     

Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets
 (carried forward) $ 4,028,443     (282,666)       

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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2017 2016
Increase (Decrease) in Unrestricted Net Assets 

(brought forward) $ 4,028,443     (282,666)       

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
Contributions 200,483        2,591,727     
Change in Value of Split Interest Agreements 470               (2,154)           
Change in Value of Assets Held in a Trust 11,584          (14,469)         
Interest and Dividends 25,664          2,083            
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains 4,271            9,820            
Underwater Endowment Activity 3,814            14,807          
Net Assets Released From Restrictions (2,637,833)    (89,862)         

Increase (Decrease) in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets (2,391,547)    2,511,952     

Permanently Restricted Net Assets
Contributions 12,230          3,146,285     
Net Transfers Between Unrestricted to Permanently

Restricted at the Request of the Donor 11,021          -                

Increase in Permanently Restricted Net Assets 23,251          3,146,285     

Increase in Net Assets 1,660,147     5,375,571     

Net Assets - Beginning of Year 11,544,310   6,168,739     

Net Assets - End of Year $ 13,204,457 11,544,310   

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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2017 2016
Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Increase in Net Assets $ 1,660,147   5,375,571   
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Depreciation 158,932      161,634      
Earnings on Investments (46,084)       (106,187)     
Change in Value of Assets Held in a Trust (11,583)       14,469        
Contributions Restricted for Long-Term Purposes 1,969,241   (6,535,386)  
(Increase) Decrease in

Tuition Receivable (2,882)         18,994        
Graduate Student Loans Receivable, Net of Current Portion 18,414        85,222        
Note Receivable -              14,208        
Inventory (3,757)        (1,003)        
Assets Held in Charitable Remainder Unitrust (710)            894             
Beneficial Interest in Assets Held by Others (11,288)       20,009        

Increase (Decrease) in
Accounts Payable 503,625      33,842        
Accrued Liabilities 50,985        (8,294)         
Deferred Grant Revenue (139,217)     437,340      
Liability Under Trust Agreement 239             1,261          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 4,146,062   (487,426)     

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Sale of Investments 48,524        116,878      
Purchase of Property and Equipment (3,544,269)  (84,654)       

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities (3,495,745)  32,224        

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Borrowings (Payments) on Restricted Cash (881,343)     881,343      
(Payments)/Change on Annuities Payable (361)            397             
Borrowings on Short-Term Debt 503,000      300,000      
Payments on Long-Term Debt (103,940)     (880,231)     

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities (482,644)     301,509      

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 167,673      (153,693)     

Cash - Beginning of Year -              153,693      

Cash - End of Year $ 167,673    -             

Supplemental Disclosures 
Interest Paid $ 39,297 50,805

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Statements of Cash Flows

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of Activities 
Barclay College is a four-year college located in Haviland, Kansas. It offers associate, bachelor, and 
master’s degrees in several areas. 
 
Measure of Operations 
In its statements of activities, the College includes in its definition of operations all revenues and 
expenses that are an integral part of its programs and supporting activities. Investment income, including 
net realized and unrealized gains and losses, earned in excess of the College’s aggregate authorized 
spending amount, and contributions to temporarily and permanently restricted net assets are recognized 
as nonoperating support, revenues, gains, and losses. 
 
Method of Accounting 
The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting. 
Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. 
 
Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash  
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash consists of cash on hand, checking accounts and a 
savings account. It excludes temporarily and permanently restricted cash. 
 
Investments 
Investments in equity securities with readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities 
are reported at their fair values in the statements of financial position. Unrealized gains and losses are 
included in the change in net assets. Investment income or loss is included in the increase in unrestricted 
net assets unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law. Investments in certificates of deposits 
with original maturities over 90 days are classified as investments. Certificates of deposit are held as 
collateral for a note payable with Haviland State Bank. 
 
Unconditional Promises to Give 
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net 
realizable value. Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are 
recorded at the present value of their estimated future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are 
computed using risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received. 
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. Conditional promises to give are not 
included as support until the conditions are substantially met. 
 
Inventory 
Inventory is stated at cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory consists of books, supplies, and clothing 
items that are sold in the Organization’s bookstore. 
 
Property, Equipment and Depreciation 
The Organization capitalizes property and equipment over $2,500. Lesser amounts are expensed.  
Purchased property and equipment are recorded at cost. Donations of property and equipment are 
recorded as contributions at their estimated fair value. Such donations are reported as unrestricted 
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contributions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose.  Assets donated 
with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash or other assets that must be used to 
acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor stipulations 
regarding how long these donated assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are 
reported when the donated or acquired assets are placed in service. Real estate is used to secure notes 
payable to JRL Living Trust and Haviland State Bank. Property and equipment are depreciated using the 
straight-line method over estimated useful lives ranging from 5 to 60 years. Depreciation expense for the 
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $158,932 and $161,634, respectively. 
 
Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets 
Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the Organization has been limited by donors to 
a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be 
maintained by the Organization in perpetuity. 
 
Donor Restricted Gifts 
Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Organization are reported at fair value at the 
date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are 
reported at fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or 
permanently restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated 
assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction or purpose restriction 
is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported 
in the statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions 
whose restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in 
the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Contributions of noncash assets are recorded at their fair values in the period received. Contributions of 
donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets or that require specialized skills or 
knowledge, are provided by individuals possessing those skills or knowledge, and would typically need to 
be purchased if not provided by donation, are recorded at their fair values in the period received. 
 
Advertising 
The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Advertising expense for the years 
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $89,430 and $89,638, respectively. 
 
Income Taxes 
The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes on related income under Section 501(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code (IRC), as an Organization described in IRC Section 501(c)(3). Further, the 
Organization has been classified as an Organization that is not a private foundation under IRC Section 
509(a) and, as such, contributions to the Organization qualify for deduction as charitable contributions. 
However, income generated from activities unrelated to the Organization’s exempt purpose is subject to 
tax under IRC Section 511. The Organization did not have any material unrelated business income tax 
liability for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. 
 
Generally accepted accounting principles prescribe the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and a 
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement 
of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. There was no effect on the financial 
statements as a result of adopting this interpretation as the Organization believes it does not have any 
material uncertain tax positions reflected in its financial statements. Tax years that remain subject to 
examination in the Organization’s major jurisdictions are for the years ended June 30, 2017, 2016, and 
2015. 
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Sales Taxes 
The Organization collects sales taxes from customers and remits the entire amount to the State. The 
Organization’s accounting policy is to exclude the tax collected and remitted to the State from revenues 
and cost of sales. 
 
NOTE 2 – CASH 
 
Cash consists of cash on hand, checking accounts and a savings account. The total carrying amounts of 
the Organization’s deposits were $1,633,161 and $2,719,564 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
The bank balances were $1,631,564 and $2,748,386 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The 
Organization’s cash balance was insured by FDIC for $500,000 and $250,000 at June 30, 2017 and 
2016, respectively. The Organization had uninsured cash balances of $1,831,564 and $3,198,386 at 
June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
NOTE 3 – CASH HELD FOR OTHERS UNDER AGENCY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Cash held for others under agency transactions is available for the following purposes: 
 

  2017  2016 
Bieshaar $ 10,219  7,518
Men’s Dorm  108  80
Alumni  2,802  1,634
Girl’s Dorm  61  157
Student Council  18,602  9,504

    
Total $ 31,792  18,893

 
NOTE 4 – INVESTMENTS AND INVESTMENT RETURN 
 
Investments are stated at fair value on a recurring basis using quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets and consist of money market funds, certificates of deposit, mutual funds, stocks and bonds as 
follows: 

    2017  2016 
Money Market Funds  $ 35,952  44,042
Certificate of Deposit  700,000  700,000
Common Stock  441,336  427,707
Preferred Stock  -  7,407
Mutual Funds  79,530  49,471
Government Obligations  39,910  56,526
Non-governmental Obligations  85,681  99,696
    
Total Investments  $ 1,382,409  1,384,849
    
    2017   
  

Unrestricted  
Temporarily 
Restricted  Total 

Interest and Dividends $ 8,423 25,664  34,087
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains            7,726 4,271  11,997
Investment Fees            (6,980) -          (6,980)
    
Net Investment Return  $ 9,169 29,937  39,104
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  2016 
  

Unrestricted  
Temporarily 
Restricted  Total 

Interest and Dividends $ 21,430 2,083  23,513
Net Realized and Unrealized Gains           72,854 9,820           82,674
Investment Fees          (39,331) -        (39,331)
   
Net Investment Return $       54,642   11,903  66,856

 
NOTE 5 – TUITION RECEIVABLE 
  
An allowance for uncollectible accounts is calculated by management and is based upon historical 
collections. Receivables are turned over to collections and written off when management determines they 
are no longer collectible. 
 
Tuition receivable consisted of the following at June 30: 

    2017  2016 
Tuition Receivable  $     452,259     339,328 
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts      (430,582)     (320,532)
  
Tuition Receivable, Net of Allowance       $       21,677       18,795 

 
NOTE 6 – UNCONDITIONAL PROMISES TO GIVE 
 
Included in unconditional promises to give are the following pledges: 
 

  2017  2016 
Pledges to be received within one year $ 415,333  441,679 
Less:  Allowance for uncollectible pledges          (93,036)          (43,330)
Pledges to be received from one to five years  1,111,484  677,152 
Less:  Allowance for uncollectible pledges        (382,447)        (216,675)
Less:  Discount to present value          (41,220)          (27,789)
   
Net Unconditional Promises to Give $ 1,010,114  831,037

Pledges due in:    
Less than one year $ 322,297  398,349
One to five years  687,817  432,688

    
Total Pledges Due $ 1,010,114  831,037

 
The discount rate was 2.59% for 2017 and 2.84% for 2016 for pledges made in those years. 
 
In addition to the unconditional promises to give reported above, Barclay College received the following 
conditional promise to give, which is not recognized as an asset in the statements of financial position. 
 

  2017  2016 
Promise to Give Conditional Upon Construction   

of a Fine Arts Center $ -  27,000  
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NOTE 7 - GRADUATE STUDENT LOANS RECEIVABLE 
 
The outstanding balances are subject to monthly compounding of interest. The applicable interest rate 
was 5% at June 30, 2017 and 2016. There are no payments due from currently enrolled students and 
payments become due two months following the completion of degree or termination of enrollment in any 
college. The balance of the receivable is due within 48 months of the first payment and requires monthly 
installments. Interest accruals are not made on accounts that are more than 120 days delinquent and the 
accounts are turned over to a collection agency at this time. The Organization will then make a 
determination of collectability and write off the remainder of the account no later than one year after 
becoming delinquent. No allowance for doubtful accounts is used on receivables prior to June 30, 2016. 
The direct write-off method is used. This policy is not in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles; however, the difference is deemed immaterial. New graduate student loans receivable as of 
June 30, 2017 are included in tuition receivable and follow the methodology for determining an allowance 
for doubtful accounts as that of tuition receivable. 
 
NOTE 8 – ASSETS HELD IN CHARITABLE REMAINDER UNITRUST 
 
A donor has established a charitable remainder unitrust in which Barclay College is the trustee and is to 
receive the assets at the trust’s termination. However, during the term of the trust, distributions must be 
made to the beneficiaries designated in the trust agreement at 5% of the value of the trust assets at the 
beginning of the year. At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the total value of the trust was as follows: 
 

      Change in 
  2017  2016  Value 
Troyer Charitable Remainder Unitrust $ 89,730 89,020  710

 
The present value of Barclay College’s liability to the beneficiaries at June 30, 2017 and 2016 is as 
follows: 

      Change in 
  2017  2016  Value 
Liability Under Trust Agreement $   45,388     45,149  1,255
Less Current Portion     (4,373)    (4,328)              (45) 
   
Total Long-Term Portion $   41,015     40,821  1,210

 
The discount rate used to calculate the present value was 2.59% and 2.84% as of June 30, 2017 and 
2016, respectively. 
 
Current maturities of the liability for the next five years and in five year increments thereafter based on 
estimated life expectancy are as follows: 
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Year Ended June 30  Amount Due 
2018 $ 4,373 
2019  4,050 
2020  3,750 
2021  3,473 
2022  3,216 

2023-2027  12,843 
2028-2032  8,745 
2033-2035  4,938 

   
Total $ 45,388 

 
NOTE 9 - BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS 
 
In prior years, Barclay College irrevocably transferred $93,845 to the South Central Community 
Foundation to establish an endowment fund. Additional monies have been transferred by Barclay 
College since the inception of this fund.  Under the terms of the agreement, the College is able to receive 
5.50% of the annual market value of the endowed fund less any fees or administrative costs allocated to 
the fund by the South Central Community Foundation. The College can receive this distribution annually. 
 
At the time of the transfers, the Organization granted South Central Community Foundation variance 
power. That power gives South Central Community Foundation the right to distribute the investment 
income to another not-for-profit organization of its choice if Barclay College ceases to exist or if the 
governing board of South Central Community Foundation determines that continued payments to Barclay 
College are unnecessary, obsolete, inappropriate, incapable of fulfillment, impractical, illegal, or 
inconsistent with South Central Community Foundation's mission. The fair value of the investment was 
$107,453 and $96,165 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
 
NOTE 10 – BENEFICIAL INTEREST IN ASSETS HELD IN A TRUST 
 
A donor has directed that the residue of his trust be given to Barclay College upon his death according to 
the terms of the Trust agreement. All funds and property which may be contributed to the College 
pursuant to the Trust shall constitute and be known as the Endowment Fund. The Endowment Fund shall 
be part of and shall be invested and maintained as part of the College’s permanent endowment, so long 
as the Endowment Fund is used according to the terms of the Trust agreement. As of June 30, 2017 and 
2016, the total value of the trust was $3,143,399 and $3,131,816 and no funds have been disbursed to 
the College to be invested in the Endowment Fund. At least 80% of the Endowment Fund income shall be 
used to fund the Chair and the business department. Further, the Investment Contest shall be funded 
from the remaining Endowment Fund income. Thereafter, the remainder of the Endowment Fund income 
may be used at the discretion of the Barclay College Trustees. Any Endowment Fund income not 
distributed must be reinvested with the principal of the Endowment. 
 
NOTE 11 – COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
Paid Time Off 
Twelve-month, full-time and part-time staff of Barclay College are entitled to 20 days of paid time off per 
year. Paid time off for part-time employees is pro-rated. Administrators are entitled to 25 days of paid time 
off per year. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the College changed the paid time off policy to 
allow for up to 10 days of unused paid time off to be carried over to the next year. No payment for unused 
paid time off will be paid upon termination. The potential liability for accrued paid time off at June 30, 2017 
and 2016 was $79,904 and $27,734, respectively, which is not reflected in the financial statements. 



BARCLAY COLLEGE 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 and 2016 
 
 

14 

Sick Leave 
Full-time administration and staff are entitled to one sick day per month for each contract month for a total 
of 12 days (96 hours) per fiscal year. Part-time employees will have sick leave prorated according to the 
number of hours worked. Up to 12 days (96 hours) of unused or uncompensated sick leave may be 
carried forward each year to a maximum accumulation of 60 days (480 hours). The maximum number of 
days (hours) that may be accumulated will be prorated for part-time employees. Unused or 
uncompensated sick leave will not be paid to an employee in the event of termination. The potential 
liability for sick leave at June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $271,987 and $252,454, respectively, which is not 
reflected in the financial statements. 
 
NOTE 12 – REVOLVING LINES OF CREDIT 
 
The Organization is responsible for the following lines of credit at June 30, 2017 and 2016: 
 

  2017  2016 
Line of credit with Haviland State Bank, interest at 2.80%, secured by 
a certificate of deposit, matures October 29, 2017. $ 700,000  700,000
    
Line of credit with Haviland State Bank, interest at 5.75%, secured by 
real estate, matures March 31, 2018.  500,000  -
    
Total Revolving Lines of Credit $ 1,200,000  1,200,000

 
The College has a $3,000,000 line of credit available to them at American State Bank. As of June 30, 
2017, the balance was $0. This loan matures on March 1, 2018 and has a current interest rate of 4.81%. 
The loan proceeds are to be used in the construction of the Ross-Ellis building. 
 
NOTE 13 – LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE 
 
Long-term notes payable consisted of the following at June 30: 

  Interest 
Rate 

  
2017 

  
2016 

Fred R. and Esther M. Johnson Trust Payable, 
matures June 13, 2017, unsecured. 

 
3.00%  - 100,000

Fred R. and Esther M. Johnson Trust Payable, 
matures June 13, 2018, unsecured. 

 
5.00%  103,000 -

JRL Living Trust Note Payable, matures February 
18, 2018, unsecured. 

 
4.00%  18,146 44,468

JRL Living Trust Note Payable, matures May 30, 
2020, secured by real estate. 

 
5.00%  68,956 90,295

Haviland State Bank Note Payable, matures July 1, 
2021, secured by real estate. 

 
5.75%  81,490 98,752

Withdrawal Gift Trust Agreement, due on demand, 
unsecured. 

 
7.00%  5,000 5,000

Kevin and Gayle Mortimer Note Payable, matures on 
July 29, 2017, unsecured. 

 
3.00%  - 20,000

Laura Davis Trust Note Payable, matures July 2, 
2018, unsecured. 

 
3.00%  20,000 20,000

JRL Living Trust Note Payable, matures March 20, 
2023, unsecured. 

 
4.00%  294,165 313,182
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Total Long-Term Notes Payable    590,757 691,697
Less: Current Portion     (216,781) (209,021)

     
Total Long-Term Notes Payable, Net of Current 
Portion 

  
$ 373,976 482,676

 
Annual maturities of long-term debt at June 30 are as follows: 
 

2018  $ 216,781 
2019  94,580 
2020  96,903 
2021  77,551 
2022  59,749 
Thereafter  45,193 
   
Total   $ 590,757  

 
Interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $55,400 and $44,749, respectively. 
The notes payable to Fred R. and Esther M. Johnson, JRL Living Trust and Kevin and Gayle Mortimer 
are related party notes to the College. 
 
NOTE 14 – ANNUITIES PAYABLE 
 
A donor can make a contribution to the Organization in the form of an annuity. The Organization then 
pays the donor an annuity of a fixed amount over the individual's life. Annuities payable represent the 
present value of a fixed amount due to the donor over the donor's expected life based on his/her age at 
June 30, 2017 and 2016. The present value of these annuities payable was as follows: 
 

  
2017  2016  

Change 
in Value 

Annuities Payable $ 18,082  18,444  361 
 
Annual maturities of annuities payable at June 30 are as follows: 
 

2018  $ 2,516 
2019  1,822 
2020  1,869 
2021  1,917 
2022  1,967 
Thereafter  7,991 
   
Total   $ 18,082  

 
NOTE 15 – TEMPORARILY AND PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
 
Temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 and 2016 were available for the following purposes: 
 

  2017  2016 
Scholarships  $ 348,811  365,403
Designated Projects and Gifts  1,817,937  4,207,831
Other Projects  234,810  219,871
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Total  $ 2,401,558  4,793,105

 
Net assets released from donor restrictions during the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 by incurring 
qualified expenses were as follows: 
 

  2017  2016 
Scholarships  $ 30,106  29,752
Designated Projects and Gifts  2,607,727  60,110
    
Total  $ 2,637,833  89,862

 
Permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2017 and 2016 are restricted to investment with the income 
available for scholarships. 
 

  2017  2016 
Scholarships and Library  $ 158,501  158,501
General  11,021  -
Chair and Business Department  3,158,515  3,146,285
    
Total  $ 3,328,037  3,304,786

 
Restricted funds are invested by an independent advisor and reviewed by management on a perpetual 
basis.  
 
NOTE 16 – ENDOWMENT FUNDS 
 
The College’s endowment consists of individual funds established for scholarships and library purposes. 
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, net assets 
associated with endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions. 
 
The College’s governing body has interpreted the State of Kansas Uniform Prudent Management of 
Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as requiring preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift 
date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a 
result of this interpretation, the College classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original 
value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the 
permanent endowment and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the 
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The 
remaining portion of donor-restricted endowment funds is classified as temporarily restricted net assets 
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the College in a manner consistent with the 
standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the College considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment 
funds: 
 

1. Duration and preservation of the fund 
2. Purposes of the College and the fund 
3. General economic conditions 
4. Possible effect of inflation and deflation 
5. Expected total return from investment income and appreciation or depreciation of investments 
6. Other resources of the College 
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7. Investment policies of the College 
 
Barclay College’s long-term financial objectives for its endowment funds are to generate income to 
provide for current needs and to preserve the principal of the endowment funds in order to provide a base 
for generating income to meet future needs. The College’s endowment committee is charged with 
investing and managing the endowment funds as a prudent investor would while taking into consideration 
the purpose, terms, and distribution requirements of each endowment fund. In making and implementing 
investment decisions, the College’s endowment committee has a duty to diversify the investments based 
on the permissible investments and quality criteria set out in the investment policy. 
 
The recommended asset allocation of the endowment funds as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 was as 
follows: 
 Minimum Maximum  
Equity 45% 55% 
Fixed Income 40%  50% 
Cash Equivalent 5%  10% 
 
The overall investment policy of the College is to obtain the best possible return on its investments and 
that such return is the sum of the yield (defined as interest, dividends, etc.) and gain (defined as 
appreciation) commensurate with the degree of risk the College is willing to assume in obtaining such 
return. A fiscal year earnings objective is 5.0%. 
 
The earnings and appreciation generated from the endowments will be available for expenditure in 
accordance with the donor’s restrictions. Any distribution from an endowment may not be in an amount 
which invades the endowment’s principal balance. Furthermore, no expenditures are allowed from an 
endowment when the fair value falls below the endowment’s principal balance. 
 
Below is a reconciliation of the activity in the endowment investment accounts. 
 
  Temporarily  Permanently   
  Restricted  Restricted  Total 
Endowment Net Assets - June 30, 2015 $ 107,216 158,501  265,717
Investment Return    

Investment Income  99 -  99
Net Gain (Realized and Unrealized)  3,767 -  3,767

Expenditures  (19,569) -  (19,569)
    
Endowment Net Assets - June 30, 2016  91,513 158,501  250,014
Transfer from unrestricted funds  - 11,021  11,021
Investment Return    

Investment Income  10,234 -  10,234
Net Gain (Realized and Unrealized)  1,738 -  1,738

Expenditures  (13,565) -  (13,565)
    
Endowment Net Assets – June 30, 2017 $ 89,920 169,522  259,422
 
The above table includes the cash and investment accounts that are under the control of the College and 
does not include other assets that may be part of an endowment, i.e., pledges, beneficial interests in 
remainder trusts, and/or other receivables. 
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NOTE 17 – EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
The Organization offers a 403(b) defined contribution retirement plan. This plan allows any qualifying 
employee to contribute a portion of his/her earnings into a tax deferred retirement account. The 
Organization contributes a dollar for dollar match up to 3% of an employee’s wage. This is a self-directed 
plan, which allows each participant to invest his/her contributions in any of a preselected list of investment 
funds. Total employer contributions during 2017 and 2016 were $46,622 and $46,557, respectively. 
 
NOTE 18 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
The Organization receives a significant portion of its revenues from grants, all of which are subject to 
audit by federal and state governments. The ultimate determination of amounts awarded under these 
programs generally is based upon eligibility of students based upon their financial need. Until such audits 
have been completed, there exists a contingency to refund any amount awarded to a student that was not 
eligible for student financial assistance. Management is of the opinion that no material liability will result 
from such audits. 
 
Prior to June 30, 2017, the College notified students of their scholarship award for the 2016-2017 school 
year. The College would be required to fulfill this commitment if the student enrolled in each semester at 
Barclay College and fulfilled other requirements outlined by the College. The total commitment to the 
students was $1,716,131 at June 30, 2017. A similar commitment of $507,300 existed at June 30, 2016. 
 
During the current year, Barclay College started construction on the Ross-Ellis Fine Arts and Ministry 
building, which has a projected cost of $8,846,797. As of June 30, 2017, the College had incurred 
$3,828,120 in actual construction costs and this amount is included in the financial statements as 
construction in progress. As of June 30, 2017, the College has received $7,600,314 in cash, assets and 
pledges that are designated for the construction of the Ross-Ellis Fine Arts and Ministry building. 
 
NOTE 19 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
 
Accounting guidance establishes the framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair 
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The 
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). 
The three levels of fair value hierarchy are described below. 
 
Level 1 
Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
 
Level 2 
Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted 
prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by 
observable market data for substantially the full-term of the assets or liabilities 
 
Level 3 
Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair 
value of the assets or liabilities 
 
The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
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Following is a description of the inputs and valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value on a recurring basis. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at 
June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016. 
 
Certificates of deposit and money market funds are valued at fair value as reported by the financial 
institution at the close of the period. 
 
Stocks, non-government obligations and government obligations are valued at the closing price reported 
on the active market on which the individual securities are traded. 
 
Mutual funds are valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. The funds are required to 
publish their daily net asset value and to transact at that price. 
 
The beneficial interest in the assets held by the others, beneficial interest in assets held in a trust and the 
charitable remainder unitrust are reported at the College’s proportionate share of the fair value of the 
underlying assets in the trusts or in the assets held by South Central Community Foundation as reported 
by the trustees. These assets are revalued annually by the College based on investment statements 
provided by the third party trustees. 
 
 

  Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2017 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Investments    

Money Market Funds $ 35,952 - -  35,952
Certificate of Deposit  700,000 - -  700,000
Common Stock  441,336 - -  441,336
Mutual Funds  79,530 - -  79,530
Government Obligations  39,910 - -  39,910
Non-government Obligations  85,681 - -  85,681

    
Total Investments  1,382,409 - -  1,382,409
    
Split Interest Agreements    

Assets Held in Charitable 
   Remainder Unitrust  - - 89,730  89,730
Beneficial Interest in Assets  

Held in a Trust  - - 3,143,399  3,143,399
Beneficial Interest in Assets 
   Held by Others  - - 107,453  107,453

    
Total Split Interest Agreements  - - 3,340,582  3,340,582
    
Total $ 1,382,409 - 3,340,582  4,722,991
 
  Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2016 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 
Investments    

Money Market Funds $ 44,042 - -  44,042
Certificate of Deposit  700,000 - -  700,000
Common Stock  427,707 - -  427,707
Preferred Stock  7,407 - -  7,407
Mutual Funds  49,471 - -  49,471
Government Obligations  56,526 - -  56,526
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Non-government Obligations  99,696 - -  99,696
    
Total Investments  1,384,849 - -       1,384,849
     
Split Interest Agreements    

Assets Held in Charitable 
   Remainder Unitrust 

 
- - 89,020  89,020

Beneficial Interest in Assets 
   Held in a Trust 

 
- - 3,131,816  3,131,816

Beneficial Interest in Assets 
   Held by Others 

 
- -

 
96,165  

 
96,165

    
Total Split Interest Agreements  - - 3,317,001  3,321,001
    
Total $ 1,384,849 - 3,317,001  4,701,850
 
The carrying values of cash, receivables, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair 
values due to the relatively short periods to maturity of these items or because they are receivable or 
payable on demand. 
 
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net 
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although Barclay College believes its 
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different 
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a 
different fair value. 
 
Level 3 Gains and Losses 
The following table sets forth a summary of changes in the fair value of the Organization’s Level 3 assets 
for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016: 
  Level 3 Assets 
  Year Ended 

June 30, 2017 
 Year Ended 

June 30, 2016 
Balance, Beginning of Year $ 3,317,001  206,088 
Realized Gains  5,816  6,266 
Unrealized Gains Relating to Instruments Still Held at 

the Reporting Date 
 

10,655  
  

(2,570) 
Change in Value of Assets Held in a Trust  11,584  (14,469) 
Contributions  -  3,146,285 
Distributions  (787)  (24,599) 
Purchases, Sales, Issuances and Settlements (Net)  (3,687)  - 
    
Balance, End of Year $ 3,340,582  3,317,001
 
NOTE 20 - PRINCIPAL INVASIONS 
 
Market declines or expenditures have caused a deficiency in three endowment funds at June 30, 2017. 
The restricted principal and the fair value of this endowment are as follows: 
 

2017 
Number of       

Restricted Accounts  Principal  Fair value  Deficiency 
3 $ 3,166,838 3,163,024 3,814
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Market declines or expenditures have caused a deficiency in three endowment funds at June 30, 2016. 
The restricted principal and the fair value of this endowment are as follows: 
 

2016 
Number of       

Restricted Accounts  Principal  Fair value  Deficiency 
3 $ 3,166,838 3,152,031 14,807

 
NOTE 21 – RELATED PARTIES 
 
The Organization had three related parties that were vendors during 2017 and 2016. These vendors 
included Haviland State Bank, who provided banking services (one member of HSB management is a 
member of the Organization’s board), Farmers Coop, from whom fuel was purchased and payment was 
made for repairs for vehicles (manager of gas station is related to an employee of the Organization) and 
Haviland Telephone Company, who provided phone service (employees of telephone company are 
related to two members of the Organizations’ management). Purchases from these vendors totaled 
$41,765 and $36,302 for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Organization 
provided student financial aid to students that either worked directly in the business office or the student 
financial aid office or were related to employees within those offices. The total aid awarded for the years 
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 were $54,209 and $93,486 respectively. There are no board members 
that are also employees of the Organization. 
 
At June 30, 2017, the Organization had outstanding unconditional promises to give from 14 individuals 
who are a board member, employee, or family member of either. The outstanding balance for these 14 
individuals net of allowance totaled $462,486. At June 30, 2017 the Organization had outstanding 
accounts receivable balances from three employee spouses that totaled $11,477. 
 
At June 30, 2016, the Organization had outstanding unconditional promises to give from nine individuals 
who are a board member, employee, or family member of either. The outstanding balance for these nine 
individuals net of allowance totaled $31,078. 
 
NOTE 22 – IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
In-kind contributions for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 consisted of donated furniture, fixtures 
for the buildings, library books, and real estate. The total amount of in-kind contributions of goods was 
$11,846 and $20,013 as of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Organization does not track 
donated unskilled labor, so these amounts are not recorded in the financial statements. 
 
NOTE 23 – FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 
 
Total fundraising expenses for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 were $71,522 and $116,989 
respectively. 
 
NOTE 24 – RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 
 
Barclay College invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various 
risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain 
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investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of the investment 
securities will occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect the activities of the College. 
The College has tried to minimize the risk associated with these investment securities by having an 
investment committee review the investment activity throughout the year and by having regular meetings 
with the investment company representatives. 
 
NOTE 25 – CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK FOR CASH DEPOSITS AT BANKS 
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the College to concentrations of credit risk consist principally 
of cash deposits. Accounts at each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(FDIC) up to certain limits. At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the College had approximately $1,831,564 and 
$3,198,386 in excess of FDIC insurance limits, respectively. At June 30, 2017 and 2016, the amount in 
excess includes a certificate of deposit in the amount of $700,000 that is classified as an investment in 
the statements of financial position. 
 
NOTE 26 – RESTRICTED FUNDS 
 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the College utilized funds set aside for restricted purposes for 
operational purposes. In order to replenish these funds the College took out a note with Haviland State 
Bank and invested the funds in a certificate of deposit in the amount of $700,000. At June 30, 2016, the 
College was still responsible for replenishing approximately $881,343 of restricted funds that were utilized 
for unrestricted purposes. Cash in the amount of $881,343 on the statements of financial position have 
been reclassified to borrowings from restricted cash under current liabilities in order to cover the amount 
necessary for restricted net assets. This amount was replenished with unrestricted funds as of June 30, 
2017. 
 
NOTE 27 – FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR GENERAL EXPENDITURES WITHIN ONE YEAR 
 

Financial Assets at June 30, 2017 $ 16,083,540 
Less:   
   Property and Equipment  (8,480,877)
   Inventory  (13,261)
  7,589,402
Contractual or Donor-Imposed Restrictions:  
    Restricted by Donor with Time or Purpose Restrictions  
        Temporarily Restricted Net Assets  (2,401,403)
        Permanently Restricted Net Assets  (3,328,037)
    Restricted Cash  (329,915)
    Board Designated  (112,698)

  
Financial Assets Available to meet Cash Needs for General 

Expenditures Within One Year 
 
$ 1,417,349 

 
NOTE 28 – RECLASSIFICATIONS 
 
Certain amounts in the prior periods presented have been reclassified to conform to the current period 
financial statement presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on previously reported increase in 
net assets. 
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NOTE 29 - PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENTS 
 
The prior period financial statements have been restated to reflect the proper allocation between 
unrestricted net assets and temporarily restricted net assets. Barclay College received a donation of 
land located in Oklahoma during the June 30, 2014 fiscal year valued at $176,000. This land was initially 
recorded as an unrestricted net asset but should have been recorded as a temporarily restricted net 
asset. The ending balances of the unrestricted net assets and temporarily restricted net assets at June 
30, 2014 have been adjusted to reflect this correction. The net effect on the financial statements for both 
years is zero. 
 
NOTE 30  – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 03, 2018, which is the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
 
Prior to issuing the financial statements, Barclay College received $3,000,000 in cash from the beneficial 
interest of the Bieshaar Trust. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees 
Barclay College
Haviland, Kansas 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Barclay College (a 
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the 
related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 03, 2018. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Barclay College’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Barclay College’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Barclay College’s internal 
control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be a material weakness and a 
significant deficiency. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs (2017-001) to be a material weakness. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs (2017-002) to be a significant deficiency. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Barclay College’s financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Barclay College’s Response to Findings 
 
Barclay College’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Barclay College’s response was not subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
ADAMS, BROWN, BERAN & BALL, CHTD. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
February 03, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Trustees 
Barclay College 
Haviland, Kansas 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Barclay College’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 
the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Barclay 
College’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. Barclay College’s major federal 
programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Barclay College’s major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted 
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect 
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about 
Barclay College’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Barclay College’s
compliance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster – Title IV 

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we were unable to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence supporting the compliance of Barclay College with CFDA 84.268 - 
Federal Direct Student Loans (FDL) as described in finding 2017-003 for reporting and CFDA No. 84.063 
– Federal Pell Grant Program as described in finding 2017-004 for reporting and as described in finding  
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2017-005 for activities allowed or unallowed. Consequently we were unable to determine whether 
Barclay College complied with those requirements applicable to that program. 
 
Qualified Opinion on the Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster – Title IV 
 
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 
paragraph, Barclay College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on CFDA 84.007 Federal Supplemental 
Educational Opportunity Grants (FSEOG), 84.033 Federal Work-Study Program (FWS), 84.063 Federal 
Pell Grant Program (Pell), and 84.268 Federal Direct Student Loans (FDL) for the year ended June 30, 
2017. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Barclay College’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Barclay College’s response was not 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no 
opinion on the response. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
 
Management of Barclay College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered Barclay College’s internal control over compliance with the types 
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine 
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Barclay College’s internal control over compliance. 
 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2017-003, 2017-004, and 2017-005, that we consider 
to be significant deficiencies. 
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Barclay College’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Barclay College’s response 
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on the response. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the 
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
ADAMS, BROWN, BERAN & BALL, CHTD. 
Certified Public Accountants 
 
February 03, 2018 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors' report issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:

● Material weakness identified? X Yes No

● Significant deficiency identified? X Yes No

● Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

FEDERAL AWARDS

Internal control over major programs:

● Material weakness identified? Yes X No

● Significant deficiencies identified? X Yes No

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a) 
of the Uniform Guidance? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers

Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster - Title IV
84.007      Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (FSEOG)
84.033      Federal Work-Study Program (FWS)
84.063      Federal Pell Grant Program (PELL)
84.268      Federal Direct Student Loans (FDL)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

750,000$      

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Unmodified

Qualified
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SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
A. Material Weakness in Internal Control 
 
2017-001 
 
Criteria  
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that journal entries are prepared to adjust all trial balance 
accounts to the proper balance at year end. 
 
Condition 
We posted several journal entries to adjust year end balances to the correct balance. 
 
Context 
Multiple adjusting entries were necessary to correct the amounts recorded in the financial statements. 
The total effect on net assets was an increase of $277,751. 
 
Effect 
Several adjustments could materially misstate the financial statements. 
 
Cause 
The Organization passed on making several journal entries at year end. 
 
Recommendation 
Procedures should be established and implemented where the Organization reconciles all year-end 
balance sheet accounts and posts the needed journal entries to adjust them.  
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions 
See corrective action plan. 
 
B. Significant Deficiency in Internal Control 
 
2017-002 
 
Criteria or specific requirement 
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that employees do not have incompatible duties. 
 
Condition 
The Organization did not have adequate segregation of duties. 
 
Context 
This finding was prevalent and was discovered throughout the entire auditing procedures of the financial 
statement audit. Areas in which these findings were particularly a problem included cutoff of income and 
expenses at year end, drafting of the financial statements, etc. 
 
Effect 
Management may not become aware of problems or irregularities in a timely manner. 
 
Cause 
The size of the Organization precludes management from hiring additional personnel in order to have 
adequate segregation of duties. 
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2017-002 (continued) 
 
Recommendation 
The Organization should implement procedures to ensure segregation of duties in the receipts and 
disbursements areas. Also, involvement of the Board can mitigate the risk of errors or fraud. The Board 
should remain involved in the financial affairs of the Organization to provide oversight and independent 
review functions. 
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions 
See corrective action plan. 

 
SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 
2017-003 
 
Information on the Federal Program 
US Department of Education Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster - Title IV – Federal Direct 
Student Loans – CFDA No. 84.268 
 
Criteria or specific requirement 
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that timely reporting to National Student Loan Data System 
(NSLDS) is completed. 
 
Condition 
The College did not timely remit student status updates to the NSLDS. 
 
Context 
During our audit procedures we reviewed the SCHER 1 report from the NSLDS system and noted that 
there were five instances that the NSLDS notified the College of being late on their data submission, 
which is not in compliance with 34 CFR Section 685.309. 
 
Effect 
The NSLDS database may contain inaccurate information which could potentially cause another 
educational institution to over award funding to a student that transferred in. 
 
Recommendation 
The College should implement procedures to ensure timely reporting is completed without having to be 
notified by NSLDS. 
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions 
See corrective action plan. 
 
2017-004 
 
Information on the Federal Program 
US Department of Education Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster - Title IV – Federal Pell Grant 
Program – CFDA No. 84.063 
 
Criteria or specific requirement 
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that the students that withdraw from the College are 
identified within 30 days of the end of the semester to determine if it is necessary to return funds to the 
Department of Education and to identify what that amount should be. 
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2017-004 (continued) 
 
Condition 
The College did not calculate the Return of Title IV Funds accurately. 
 
Context 
A total of five students were examined for return of Title IV funds. Of the five there were two instances 
where the amount required to be returned was calculated incorrectly. This resulted in an over return of 
Title IV funds of $2,687. 
 
Effect 
The funds that students are awarded under Title IV are to be utilized for the completion of educational 
coursework to achieve a degree or certificate in a program of study. If an over return of Title IV Funds is 
completed the student is essentially being underpaid what they were entitled to for attending school for 
the period they did. 
 
Recommendation 
The College should implement procedures to ensure that the Return to Title IV funds are calculated 
correctly. 
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions 
See corrective action plan. 
 
2017-005 
 
Information on the Federal Program 
US Department of Education Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster - Title IV – Federal Pell Grant 
Program – CFDA No. 84.063 
 
Criteria or specific Requirement 
The College must disburse the credit balance in a student's account resulting from federal funds to the 
student within 14 days of when the credit was originated. Title IV funds are also to be used for the 
designated award period, unless a signed waiver is obtained from the student. These funds cannot be 
applied to a prior award period and should be refunded to the student.  
 
Condition 
The College failed to return credit balances within the required 14 day period. 
 
Context 
During our audit procedures we examined 51 student accounts. Of the 51 accounts examined 30 of them 
had credit balances of which 4 of the credit balances totaling $9,107 were not refunded within the 
required 14 days and 1 credit balance in the amount of $11 was never refunded.  
 
Effect 
Five students did not receive the credit balance in his/her account within 14 days of its initial existence. 
 
Recommendation 
The College should implement procedures to ensure that credit balances are identified and remitted to 
the students within the 14 day window. 
 
Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions 
See corrective action plan. 
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SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
A. Material Weaknesses in Internal Control 
 
2016-001 
 
Criteria or specific requirement 
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that all outstanding and unconditional pledges are recorded 
and properly tracked. 
 
Condition 
The Organization did not adequately record pledges. 
 
Context 
Multiple adjusting entries were necessary to correct the amount recorded as pledges receivable when we 
reconciled the pledges from the original supporting documentation to the SAGE system and to the 
general ledger. 
 
Effect 
The pledges receivable recorded in the financial records of the College could easily be over or 
understated at any point in time. 
 
Cause 
The College did not reconcile the supporting documentation of each individual pledge to what was 
recorded in the SAGE system and did not reconcile the activity recorded in the SAGE system to the 
activity in the general ledger. 
 
Recommendation 
The College should develop a method of recording and subsequently reconciling all pledges in their 
SAGE system and then reconcile the SAGE system to the activity recorded in the general ledger of the 
College. 
 
Current Status 
This was addressed in the current year by management and is no longer an issue. 

2016-002 
 
Criteria  
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that journal entries are prepared to adjust all trial balance 
accounts to the proper balance at year end. 
 
Condition 
We posted several journal entries to adjust year end balances to the correct balance. 
 
Context 
Multiple adjusting entries were necessary to correct the amounts recorded in the financial statements. 
The total effect on net assets was an increase of $3,223,378. 
 
Effect 
Several adjustments could materially misstate the financial statements. 
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2016-002 (continued) 
 
Cause 
The Organization passed on making several journal entries at year end. 
 
Recommendation 
Procedures should be established and implemented where the Organization reconciles all yearend 
balance sheet accounts and posts the needed journal entries to adjust them.  
 
Current Status 
This issue is still ongoing and reported as a current finding at 2017-001. 
 
B. Significant Deficiency in Internal Control 
 
2016-003 
 
Criteria or specific requirement 
Internal controls should be in place to ensure that employees do not have incompatible duties. 
 
Condition 
The Organization did not have adequate segregation of duties. 
 
Context 
This finding was prevalent and was discovered throughout the entire auditing procedures of the financial 
statement audit. Areas in which these findings were particularly a problem included cutoff of income and 
expenses at year end, drafting of the financial statements, etc. 
 
Effect 
Management may not become aware of problems or irregularities in a timely manner. 
 
Cause 
The size of the Organization precludes management from hiring additional personnel in order to have 
adequate segregation of duties. 
 
Recommendation 
The Organization should implement procedures to ensure segregation of duties in the receipts and 
disbursements areas. Also, involvement of the Board can mitigate the risk of errors or fraud. The Board 
should remain involved in the financial affairs of the Organization to provide oversight and independent 
review functions. 
 
Current Status 
This issue is still ongoing and reported as a current finding at 2017-002. 
 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
No material findings or questioned costs are required to be disclosed under the Uniform Guidance. 
 



Federal Agency or
CFDA Pass-through Federal

Number Number Expenditures

U.S. Department of Education

Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster - Title IV

Federal Supplemental Educational
Opportunity Grants 84.007 N/A $ 11,522

Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 N/A 40,692

Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 N/A 651,003

Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 N/A 1,593,650

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 2,296,867

BARCLAY COLLEGE
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Federal Grantor/ 
Pass-through Grantor/

Program Title

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
Barclay College and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(Uniform Guidance). 
 
NOTE 2 – INDIRECT COST RATE 
 
The College has elected not to use the 10% de minimis cost rate allowed under Section 200.414(f) of the 
Uniform Guidance. 
 
NOTE 3 - FEDERAL DIRECT STUDENT LOANS PROGRAM 
 
The Federal Direct Student Loans Program is a program where a student or student's parent applies for a 
federal loan. When the loan is approved, the money is transferred to a bank account in Barclay 
College's name, but the loan funds are designated for the individual student. Total new loans made to 
eligible students and/or student’s parents pursuant to this program totaled $1,593,650. 
 
NOTE 4 - ADMINISTRATIVE COST ALLOWANCE 
 
Barclay College can receive up to a 5% administrative cost allowance from the U.S. Department of 
Education for administering the federal awards program. The Organization received $780 as an 
administrative cost allowance, which is less than the 5% administrative cost allowance allowed for the 
year ended June 30, 2017. 
 
NOTE 5 - MATCHING CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
The Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants (FSEOG) program provides grants to eligible 
undergraduate students with priority given to Pell grant recipients who have the lowest expected family 
contributions. Barclay College is required by the U.S. Department of Education to provide matching 
contributions to the FSEOG program. Federal funds pay up to 75% of the FSEOG grants. The 
Organization is required to match the remaining 25%. The Organization provided $3,841 for the matching 
contributions for the FSEOG grants for the year ended June 30, 2017, which was greater than the 
required matching amount. 
 
The Federal Work-Study (FWS) program provides part-time employment to eligible undergraduate and 
graduate students who need the earnings to help meet costs of postsecondary education. Barclay 
College is required by the U.S. Department of Education to provide matching funds to the FWS program.  
Federal funds pay up to 75% of the compensation paid to students. The Organization is required to match 
the remaining 25%. The Organization provided $13,564 for the matching contributions for the FWS 
program for the year ended June 30, 2017, which satisfied the 25% matching requirement. 
 











Appendix H 

Audits and Evaluations for Title IV 
 

Two audits have been performed for the college since the last HLC evaluation in April 2016.  They are 

below. 

2016 

2015-16 Audit.pdf

 

2017 

16-17 Audit.pdf

 

Federal documents 

6/2015 approval  

20180323124842381.

pdf
 

11/2016 TEACH program approval 

20180323124920569.

pdf
 

Program participation Agreement (first page) 

20180323124855122.

pdf
 



Appendix I 

Correspondence relative to limitations and fines 

 

There has been no correspondence between Barclay College and the Department relative to 

limitation, suspension, or censures nor has there been any fines assessed. 



Appendix J 

Correspondence relating to financial responsibilities. 

 

There has been no correspondence between the Department and Barclay College concerning 

financial responsibilities. 

 



Appendix K 

Correspondence relative to Default rates 

There has been no correspondence between the Department and Barclay College concerning 

default rates or a need for a management plan. 



Appendix L 

Sample of Loan Agreements and Disclosure Information 

 
 

Ryan Haase 

Director Student Financial Services 

1.800.862.0226 

E-mail: ryan.haase@barclaycollege.edu 

 

 

Dear Taylor, 

 

I am pleased to present you with your Official Financial Aid Award Letter for the 2017-2018 

school year. Please read over the offer carefully and return a signed copy as soon as possible. 

Your financial aid will not be processed until you return this agreement. 

 

The enclosed Financial Aid Award represents the sources and the amount of financial aid you are 

entitled to receive based on the FAFSA and documentation presently on file in the Student 

Financial Services Office. Outside scholarships or aid sources that are not included will be 

incorporated into an adjusted package when we receive notification of these awards. You must 

notify us of any other financial aid you will be receiving. 

 

If you wish to take out a loan, please fill out the Entrance Counseling and Master Promissory 

Note. Attached is a detailed how-to document that will bring you through the process of finding 

the Entrance Counseling and Master Promissory Note.  You will need to complete both forms in 

order to receive a loan.  

 

Please read the award offer carefully. To decline a loan, check the corresponding decline box. All 

loan amounts are the maximum allowed. Please contact the Student Financial Services Office if 

you wish to decrease any loan amount. Once you have read over the award letter, please sign and 

mail back to me. Turning this in prior to the beginning of the semester will ensure that your 

Financial Aid is ready to be processed and it will make the registration process more 

convenient.    
 

You may also feel free to contact me with any questions regarding this offer. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Ryan Haase 

Director Student Financial Services 



Appendix M 

Campus Crime Information 

 

www.barclaycollege.edu/undergraduate/about.barclay 

 

 
 



Appendix N 

Right to Know Data and Athletic Participation 

 

The website to access the Student handbook is 

https://www.barclaycollege.edu/pdf/StudentHandbook.pdf 

 

The handbook is also available by logging into the college network at 

www.barclaycollege.edu 

 

 



Appendix O 

Disclosure Information Concerning Satisfactory Progress 

Web address where information about satisfactory academic progress 

is.  http://www.barclaycollege.edu/undergraduate/finance/ 

Statement from website 

 

Satisfactory Academic Progress 
Federal regulations require the College to establish and apply reasonable standards of 
satisfactory progress for the purpose of the receipt of financial assistance under the 
programs authorized by Title IV of the Higher Education Act. The law requires 
institutions to develop policies regarding satisfactory academic progress (SAP) for each 
degree program and the consequences to the student if progress is not achieved. 
Barclay College students who wish to be considered for financial aid must maintain 
satisfactory progress in their selected course of study as set forth in this policy. 

 Institutional Policy 

The Financial aid Office evaluates student academic progress at the beginning of each 
award year. Students are evaluated on the basis of grade point average (GPA), credit 
hour completion, and maximum time frame limitation. (see academic probation policy) 

If a student fails to achieve the minimum required cumulative GPA during a probationary 
semester, the normal result is academic suspension which involves complete 
separation from the College for at least one subsequent semester. Students may be 
granted permission by the faculty to continue on academic probation if they have made 
satisfactory progress toward achieving the required minimum cumulative GPA. This 
possibility remains as long as the GPA is improved. If it is lowered or remains 
unchanged, the academic suspension will be enforced. 

If the faculty grants a student permission to return the following semester, then the 
student may be eligible financial aid. 

 Maximum Time Frame Limitation (Degree Completion) 

Students are also subject to a quantitative measure of progress. Students must: 
maintain a cumulative maximum time frame of at least 67% (courses used here will be 
those in which the student is enrolled at the official reporting date (20th class day) 

 Institutional Procedures 

Students are notified of the Satisfactory Academic Policy (SAP) in the Barclay College 
Academic Catalog. In addition, a SAP policy letter is mailed to aid recipients with each 
award letter. 

  

 

 



Statement from campus catalog 

 

  



Statement from online catalog 

 

  



Statement from Student Handbook 

 



 



Appendix P 

Contractual Relationships 

 

There are no contractual relationships. 



Appendix Q 

Consortiums 

 

There are no consortiums. 



Appendix R 

Catalogs and Handbooks 

 

Links to the three catalogs and the student handbook. 

Barclay College 

2017-2018 Campus Catalog.pdf
 

BC Grad School 

Catalog 7.1 (2017-2018).pdf
 

BC Online Catalog 

2017-2018.pdf
 

 

Student Handbook 

17 18.pdf
 

 



Appendix S 

Required Information for Students and the Public 

 

Information for students is disseminated in various ways.  Data about courses and schedules are posted 

at the website and may be obtained through the college catalog.  Registration Notes are available for 

students whenever enrollment opens. Information concerning acceptance into the college programs both 

campus and online are sent out from the admissions office and from the Registrar. Needed information 

for accessing the college network is provided to each accepted student through the network office. 

 

Below is a copy of the process adopted by the college for assuring accepted students receive the infor-

mation needed for the online program: 

Present: Shelly Barber, Mark Miller, Elaina Halverstadt, Ginger Maggard, Aaron Stokes, Trent Maggard 

• Shelly introduced the purpose of the meeting as determining what is communicated to online 

students, what needs to be communicated to online students, and how/who will communicate 

such information.  

• Admissions (Shelly): Once applications have been received, Shelly calls and emails the applicant. 

Included in the communication plan is an email that goes out 3 days after the student has ap-

plied giving them an overview of the online program including the 6-week schedule, costs and 

financial aid opportunities. One week after the student applies they are sent a letter from the 

President. The biggest thing that needs to be communicated, according to Shelly is that the 

online program is not free.  

• Once a student’s admissions file is complete, it is handed off to Mark.  

• Registrar (Mark): He creates a worksheet for what a student needs to complete their degree. He 

sends this via email with an acceptance letter. In this email he introduces everyone (Aaron, 

Trent, Ryan, Elaina). 

o Once a student responds to Mark with their Barclay email, he enters it into Populi. 

o Some things that need to be communicated  better include how to utilize Populi, Finan-

cial Aid, their intent to graduate (and the stipulation that to graduate from BC they need 

to complete 60% of their core classes from BC). 

• Business Office (Elaina & Ginger): Send billing information. The full-tuition scholarship and fed-

eral financial aid are not applied until the last session because students add/drop classes so of-

ten.  

o Some things that need to be communicated better: Importance of filling out FAFSA in a 

timely manner; signing the award letter right away; students cannot enroll in the next 

semester until their current bill is paid.  

• Director of Distance Learning (Aaron): He teaches orientation. As we move to Canvas, he would 

like to create introductory videos for the new orientation.  

o It is important to communicate to both faculty and students that once accepted, all cor-

respondence should go through their Barclay email. 

• Technology (Trent): In addition to getting students set up with their emails, Trent informs stu-

dents that they are eligible while a student to receive Microsoft Office. They can also request ID 

cards (free for PDF, $10 to mail a physical copy). 

o It would be good to communicate better that students are eligible to use Microsoft Of-

fice for free. Many do not know and purchase it without needing.  



• Conclusions: It is important to be warm and friendly to our online students. Most are adult 

learners with a lot of distractions. Additionally, it will not hurt to repeat information between 

departments. It might take a couple times hearing information for them to understand due to 

their busy lives, and online learning being a new and overwhelming experience. 

 

. 

 



100 Years of Excellence in Higher Christian Education

www.barclaycollege.edu   |   800-862-0226   |   Haviland, KS

CAMPUS ONLINE GRADUATE
Home of the Full Tuition Scholarship 
(for all dorm residents).

Six week classes to fit all schedules. A�ordable and Achievable Online.

BARCLAY COLLEGE



Apply now and receive a Full-Tuition Scholarship!

All resident students automatically receive an $14,000
full-tuition scholarship upon acceptance.

HAVILAND, KS - 800.862.0226
WWW.BARCLAYCOLLEGE.EDU

“Preparing students in a Bible-centered
environment for effective Christian life,

service, and leadership.”



























Appendix T 

Advertising and Recruiting Materials 

 

The college website has much of the advertising for the college, but here are electronic 

samples of other pieces used by the college. 

 

College 

 

KS Chief Ad.pdf

 
Campus 

0003151120-01.pdf

 

Handout - Campus 

Trifold Postcard.compressed.pdf
 

 

Online 

 

20180321121534693.

pdf
 

 

Graduate 

 

20180321115446745.

pdf

20180321115434873.

pdf
 

 



20180321115420322.

pdf
 

 

Friends Ministry Training 

 

FMT Brochure 

11_x8.5_, 0.25_ bleed.pdf 
 



Appendix U 

Accurate, Timely, Appropriate Advertising 

 

Advertisements and recruiting materials are done on a as needed basis and are not used 

for extended periods of time so that all the brochures and mailing pieces are regularly 

created and review. There is a marketing committee that functions with a director who 

sends proposed materials to the appropriate division of the college to proof materials 

before they are put into use.  There are no written policies presently in place.  Whatever 

advertising pieces are needed are routed through the director rather than going to the 

creative media team. 



 
 

Appendix V 

Student Outcomes data and other Pertinent Data Collected 

 

Data collected in the semester reports: 

 

Fall Report 

Table A: Campus enrolment numbers (HC, FT, PT, FTE and New) 

Table B Total college enrollment numbers same data as Table A but includes also Online, 

and Graduate  

Table C Campus attrition Spring to Fall (based on headcount) 

Table D Headcount and full-time equivalency for total college 

Table E Retention rated for First-time Full-time Freshmen and FTFTFR attrition fall to fall 

Table F Grade classification Campus 

Table G Ethnic comparisons for total college 

Table H Gender comparisons total college 

Table I Married Students for campus 

Table J Honor roll and probation percentages 

Table K Undergraduate majors (numbers) with percentages per division 

Table L FTFTFR Program Completion Rates 

Table M Denominational Bodies total college 

Table N Percent of Friends Students total college 

Table O Geographical Origins 

Table Q Masters concentrations 

  

Spring Report 

Table A: Campus enrolment numbers (HC, FT, PT, FTE and New) 

Table B Total college enrollment numbers same data as Table A but includes also Online, 

and Graduate  

Table C Campus attrition fall to spring 

Table D Part-time statistics 

Table E Headcount and full-time equivalency for total college 

Table F Total Headcount for the year 

Table G Attrition FTE fall to spring 

Table H Honor roll and probation campus 

Table I All majors and division percentages 

Table J Graduates since 1981 

Table K Denominations total college 

Table L Candidates for graduation 

Table M Online Degree Completion statistics 

Table N summary reports with FT, PT, FTE and New for fall and spring each year 

Table O New Students campus only 

Table P Online Spring figures compared 

 

Data posted at the college website (https://www.barclaycollege.edu/about/) 

Enrollment 

Retention 

FTFTFR Completion rates 

Federal Compliance Document 

Drug Free Camps 

Campus Security and Safety 

Athletic Report (participation and funding percentages) 

Student Handbook 

 

Data available as needed 

Grade Point Averages (may be broken down in multiple ways) 

GPAs for conditional students (or for class or major, or candidates) 

Retention (numbers and reasons for leaving) 

 

 



Appendix W 

Other accrediting Bodies 

 

February 22, 2017 ABHE 

 

 



 



July 13, 2017 ABHE  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  



March 7 ABHE  

 

 



 
 

KSDE (Kansas State Department of Education 

 

Barclay On-Site 

Report 12.18.17.docx
 

 

See letter below. 



 
 

 

 

From ACSI (Association of Christian schools International 

 

Barclay One-Day 

Report - 9-2016.pdf
 



Appendix X 

Disclosures relative to accreditation 

(Barclay is in good standing or has candidacy with each) 

 

The college is listed in the current edition of the Higher Education Directory and is 
approved for the training of veterans. Barclay College is a member of the Association of 
Christian Schools International (ACSI). Other offices and personnel on campus maintain 
membership in a wide variety of professional organizations appropriate to their work. 
Barclay College graduates have found acceptance into leading seminaries and 
graduate schools. The documents describing the college's accreditation and licensing 
may be viewed in the Business Office where they are on display. Those desiring further 
information regarding the accreditation of the college should contact the Vice President 
for Academic Services at (620) 862-5252. As part of the school's national accreditation 
requirements, Barclay College recently submitted progress reports to the Association for 
Biblical Higher Education (ABHE), both for the undergraduate and the graduate 
programs. 

 

Association for Biblical Higher Education 

Barclay College is accredited by the Commission on 
Accreditation, of the Association for Biblical Higher Education 
(ABHE). ABHE is a national accrediting agency recognized by the US Department of 
Education and the Council for Higher Education Accreditation (CHEA). ABHE may be 
contacted by writing to The Association for Biblical Higher Education; 5850 T.G. Lee 
Blvd, Suite 130; Orlando, FL, 32822; by calling (407) 207-0808; or through their website 
at http://www.abhe.org.  
 
Barclay College, located in Haviland, Kansas, was reaffirmed full accreditation from 
ABHE through 2027 in acknowledgement of a satisfactory institutional self-study and an 
evaluation team visit. Persons interested in reviewing the standards for accreditation will 
find them on the ABHE website at www.abhe.org. They appear under “about 
accreditation.” The institution is subject to the “Comprehensive Integrated Standards for 
Institutional Accreditation. Adopted February 1997, Revised November 2011, April 2012 

Association of Christian Schools International 

Barclay College was granted Accreditation for their Teacher Education program on Feb 
12, 2013 by the Association of Christian Schools International, ACSI. This accreditation 
is approved for a period of ten years, beginning with the graduating class of Spring 2013 
and concluding with spring graduation class of 2023. A one-day, on-site revisit by an 
ACSI representative will occur during the 3rd year of approval. Renewal will take place 
with a full team revisit on or before March 2023. This accreditation allows the Teacher 



Education graduates to receive a certification through ACSI to teach in the K-12 
Christian Schools that are also accredited by ACSI. Contact information for Association 
of Christian Schools International: PO Box 65130, 731 Chapel Hills Drive, Colorado 
Springs, CO 80962-5130. Phone: 719.528.6906 Website: http://www.acsiglobal.org 

Higher Learning Commission 

Barclay College has been named a candidate for accreditation with the Higher Learning 
Commission (HLC) of the North Central Region. The College will undergo a review for 
full accreditation in 2018. Assurance Argument. 

Kansas State Department of Education 

Barclay College’s Teacher Education 
program has received limited accreditation, 
which is the highest level for a new Teacher 
Education program, from the Kansas State 
Department of Education (KSDE) with 
approval of a state licensure unit and 
program. The KSDE Board of Education 
voted to approve the Limited Accreditation of 
Barclay College on December 9, 2014 for the 
Teacher Education unit and Elementary 
Education program. Barclay is admitting 
candidates to the program of study in Spring 
of 2015.  
 
Contact information for Teacher Education program information. 



Appendix Y 

Public Notification of Opportunity to Comment 
 

Notice from the webpage: 

 

 

 

Notices placed in the Kiowa County Signal and the Pratt Tribune: 

 



Notice in the college publication The Progress. 

 

Same information as was in the newspapers. 
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